
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS                    STAFF 
John Kruzan, Chairman  Deborah L. Bell, Planning and Zoning Director  
Danny England, Vice-Chairman Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
John H. Culbreth, Sr   Maria Binns, Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
Jim Oliver    E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney 
Boris Thomas          
______________________________________________________________________________
                                                                

AGENDA 
FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

140 STONEWALL AVENUE WEST 
December 04, 2025 

7:00 pm 
    

*Please turn off or turn to mute all electronic devices during the  
Planning Commission Meetings                              

________________________________________________________________________ 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda. 
 

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on November 6, 2025.  
 

5. Plats 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 

1. Consideration of Amendments to Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article VII.- 
Zoning Boad of Appeal. Sec.110-241.- Public Hearing.   
 

2. Consideration of Petition 1368-25, Stuart Reagan and Laura K. Reagan, Owners, are 
requesting to rezone 8.053 acres from R-70 (Single-Family Residential) to A-R 
(Agricultural-Residential). Property is located in Land Lot 75 of the 7th District and 
fronts Sun Road. 

 
3. Consideration of Petition 1369-25-A, The McCotter Family Trust, Owner, is 

requesting to rezone 3.00 acres of Parcel No. 0433 049, Tract 2, from R-45 (Single-
Family Residential) to A-R Agricultural-Residential (Single-Family). Property is 
located in Land Lot 183 of the 4th District and fronts Fletcher Ford Road. 
 



 

 

4. Consideration of Petition 1369-25-B, The McCotter Family Trust, Owner, is 
requesting to rezone 3.00 acres of Parcel No. 0433 051, Tract 1, from R-45 (Single-
Family Residential) to A-R Agricultural-Residential (Single-Family). Property is 
located in Land Lot 183 of the 4th District and fronts Fletcher Ford Road. 
 

5. Consideration of Petition 1370-25, Jean Allen Living Trust, Jerome Allen POA, is 
requesting to rezone 6.00 acres of Parcel No. 0448 013 from A-R Agricultural-
Residential (Single-Family) to R-80 (Single-Family). Property is located in Land Lot 
249 of the 4th District and fronts Antioch Road.  
 

6. Consideration of Petition 1371-25, CK 138, LLC, Owner, is requesting to rezone 
15.733 acres from R-40 (Single-Family) to C-H (Highway Commercial) for future 
office development. Property is located in Land Lot 198 of the 13th District and fronts 
Highway 138.    

 
7. Consideration of Petition 1372-25-A, 1246 Highway 314 Fayette Co, LLC, Owner, is 

requesting to rezone Parcel No. 1306 011 (45.412 acres) Tract I, from R-40 (Single-
Family Residential) to A-R (Agricultural-Residential). Property is located in Land Lot 
219 of the 13th District and fronts Highway 314 North. 
 

8. Consideration of Petition 1372-25-B, 1246 Highway 314 Fayette Co, LLC, Owner, is 
requesting to rezone Parcel No. 1306 117 (4.738 acres) Tract II, from R-40 (Single-
Family Residential) to A-R Agricultural-Residential (Single-Family). Property is 
located in Land Lot 219 of the 13th District and fronts Highway 314 North. 
 

9. Consideration of Petition 1373-25, Kyle D. Weishaar and Laura S. Weishaar, Owners, 
are requesting to rezone 7.745 acres from A-R Agricultural-Residential (Single-Family) 
to R-78 Single-family Residential. Property is located in Land Lot 26 of the 5th District 
and fronts Harp Road. 
 

10. Consideration of the Fayette County Planning Commission 2026 Calendar. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



Meeting Minutes 11/06/2025 
 

Page 1 
Draft 

 
 

 
THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on November 6th, 2025, at 7:00 
P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, 
Georgia.   
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   John Kruzan, Chairman   
                                         Danny England, Vice-Chairman  
                                         John H. Culbreth Sr 
    Jim Oliver 
    Boris Thomas 
                                                            
STAFF PRESENT:          Debbie Bell, Planning and Zoning Director  
                                     Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator   
    Maria Binns, Zoning Secretary  

E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney  
________________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

1. Call to Order. Chairman John Kruzan called the November 6, 2025, meeting to order 
at 7:00 pm.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Chairman John Kruzan offered the invocation and led the 
audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

3. Approval of Agenda. Ms. Deborah Sims amended the agenda to include under item 5 
plats, letter g. Minor Final Plat of 183 Busbin Road, and to vote to table the Public 
Hearings due to advertisement errors. Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the amended 
agenda as presented. John H. Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-
0. Deborah Bell, Planning and Zoning Director, was absent. 

 
4. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on October 2, 2025. Danny England 

made a motion to approve the minutes of the meeting held on October 2, 2025. John H. 
Culbreth seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0.   
  

5. Plats 
 
Ms. Deborah Sims confirmed the plats were reviewed and approved by staff.   
 

a. Major Final Plat of Huntcliff Manor II.  
 
Ms. Sims stated the plat consisting of fifty-three (53) lots with a total of 114.67 
acres, zoned PUD-PRD, located in Land Lot(s) 28 and 29 of the 7th District and 



PC Minutes 
November 6, 2025 

 

Page 2 
 

fronts on Davis Road. 
 
Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Major Final Plat of Huntcliff Manor 
II. John Culbret, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.   
 

b. Minor Final Plat of Hanner Farm’s – North.  
 
Ms. Sims explained that it consists of eight (8) lots with a total of 124.509 acres, 
zoned A-R, located in Land Lot(s) 4, 5, 28, and 29 of the 4th District and fronts on 
Mask Road. 
 
Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Minor Final Plat of Hanner’s Farm – 
North. Danny England seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

c. Minor Final Plat of Hanner’s Farm – South. 
 
Ms. Sims explained the plat consists of eight (8) lots with a total of 52.684 acres, 
zoned A-R, located in Land Lot(s) 4 of the 4th District and fronts on Mask Road. 
 
Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Minor Final Plat of Hanner’s Farm – 
South. John Culbret, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
d. Major Final Plat of Windsor Court. 

 
Ms. Sims added this plat consisting of forty-two (42) lots with a total of 82.05 acres, 
zoned R-40, located in Land Lot(s) 120 of the 5th District and fronts on Callaway 
Road.  
 
Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Major Final Plat of Windsor Court. 
John Culbret, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

 
e. Minor Final Plat of Rose Brown Mask Estate. 

 
Ms. Sims said this plat will create four (4) lots with a total of 40.538 acres, zoned 
A-R, located in Land Lot(s) 6 of the 5th District and fronts on Harp Road and 
McBride Road. 
 
Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Minor Final Plat of Rose Brown Mask 
Estate. John Culbret, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
f. Minor Final Plat of William Mercer Massengale Estate. 

 
Ms. Sims stated the plat will create five (5) lots with a total of 81.612 acres, zoned 
A-R, located in Land Lot(s) 157 of the 4h District and fronts on Rising Star Road. 

 
Mr. Jim Oliver asked if the barn issue was addressed from the last meeting on 



PC Minutes 
November 6, 2025 

 

Page 3 
 

October 2, 2025? 
 
Ms. Sims responded yes, since they were subdividing the property, it lost the 
nonconforming status, and the Zoning Board of Appeals allowed it to be kept in 
place.        

 
Mr. Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Minor Final Plat of William Mercer 
Massengale. John Culbret, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

 
g. Minor Final Plat of 183 Busbin Road.  

 
Ms. Sims added that this plat will consist of three (3) lots with a total of 21.825 
acres, zoned A-R, located in Land Lot(s) 227 of the 4h District and fronts on Busbin 
Road. 
 
Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the Minor Final Plat of 183 Busbin Road. 
John Culbret, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 

Due to an error in the public notice for the November 6th, 2025, meeting, the following 
cases have been rescheduled for the Planning Commission meeting on Thursday, 
December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of Commissioners on Thursday, January 22nd, 
2026: 
 
Ms. Sims notified the board that it will need to vote to table each Public Hearing due to 
advertisement errors for the dates established above.   
 
1. Consideration of Amendments to Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article 

VII.- Zoning Boad of Appeals. Sec.110-241.- Public Hearing. Danny England made 
a motion to TABLE the Consideration of Amendments to Chapter 110. Zoning 
Ordinance, regarding Article VII.- Zoning Board of Appeals. Sec 110-241.- Public 
Hearing to the Planning Commission meeting for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, 
and for the Board of Commissioners on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John 
Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 
 

2. 1368-25 – 183 Sun Road. Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1368-25 
to the Planning Commission meeting for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the 
Board of Commissioners on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., 
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 
   

3. 1369-25-A-B – 229 Fletcher Ford Road. 
 
1369-25-A: Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1369-25-A (229 Fletcher 



PC Minutes 
November 6, 2025 

 

Page 4 
 

Ford Rd) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of Commissioners on 
Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion 
passed 5-0.  

 
1369-25-B: Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1369-25-B (229 Fletcher 
Ford Rd) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of Commissioners on 
Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The motion 
passed 5-0. 
 

4. 1370-25 – 366 Antioch Road. Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1370-
25 (366 Antioch Road) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of 
Commissioners on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 5-0. 
 

5. 1371-25 – Highway 138. Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1371-25 
(Highway 138) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of Commissioners 
on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The 
motion passed 5-0. 

 
6. 1372-25-A-B – 1246 Highway 314. 
 

1372-25-A: Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1372-25-A (1246 
Highway 314) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of Commissioners 
on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
1372-25-B: Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1372-25-B (1246 
Highway 314) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of Commissioners 
on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the motion. The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 

7. 1373-25 – 211 Harp Road. Danny England made a motion to TABLE Petition 1372-
25-A (211 Harp Road) for Thursday, December 4th, 2025, and for the Board of 
Commissioners on Thursday, January 22nd, 2026. John Culbreth, Sr., seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

        
       ****************** 
 

Jim Oliver moved to adjourn the November 6, 2025, Planning Commission meeting. John 
Culbreth Sr. seconded. The motion passed 5-0.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:12 pm 

    
 
                PLANNING COMMISSION 



PC Minutes 
November 6, 2025 

 

Page 5 
 

                                  OF 
ATTEST:                                                                          FAYETTE COUNTY 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________ 

                                                                          JOHN KRUZAN, CHAIRMAN 
 

__________________________ _______ 
MARIA BINNS 
PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY 



1 
 

 
Planning and Zoning 

140 Stonewall Avenue West, Ste 202 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 

Phone: 770-305-5421 
www.fayettecountyga.gov 

 

 
 

 
PETITION No: TA-0009-25 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Amend Sec. 110-242. Powers and Duties. 
 
Staff is presenting a recommendation to amend Sec. 110-241. Public hearing. This 
amendment addresses the public notice requirements for the Zoning Board of 
Appeals. It aligns our ordinance with recent amendments by the State of Georgia 
for zoning procedure laws. 
 
Please refer to the subsequent pages for details of the proposed amended 
language. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the amendment as 
presented. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING: On November 6, 2025  
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING: December 11, 2025 
 
 
 
 

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/


 

 

 
    Created: 2025-09-23 13:12:49 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 20) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 110-241. Public hearing. 

(a) Place, time, and date. The public hearings shall be conducted as follows:  

(1) Place: the county administrative complex.  

(2) Time and Date: Fourth Monday, at the time designated for its regular meetings.  

Any changes from the standard schedule for public hearings will be published in the newspaper which carries legal 
advertisements for the county in compliance with the requirements for public notification as provided herein.  

(b) Conduct of hearing. Public hearings shall be conducted with 20 minutes provided for the appellant/petitioner 
and proponents and 20 minutes provided for the opponents of an appeal/petition. An appellant/petitioner 
may reserve part of the allotted time for rebuttal.  

(c) Notice of hearing shall be given. Before making its decision on an appeal, a request for a variance, or any 
other matter within the zoning board of appeals' purview, the zoning board of appeals shall hold a public 
hearing thereon. A notice of the date, time and place of such hearing shall be sent to the 
appellant/petitioner by certified U.S. mail to the appellant/petitioner's last known address.  

(d) Public notice in newspaper. The zoning board of appeals shall cause public notice of the hearing to be 
published in the legal organ of the county, at least 30 15 but not more than 45 calendar days prior to the 
date of the public hearing. The notice shall state the time, place, and purpose of the hearing.  

(e) Posting of signs. 

(1) A sign shall be posted on property. One sign is required for each street frontage of said property. The 
sign shall be posted consistent with the requirements for newspaper notification.  

(2) Signs used for posting property shall be a minimum of 18 inches by 18 inches and shall indicate the 
appeal/petition number, the time, date, and place of the hearing.  

(3) A refundable sign deposit shall be required for each sign at the time of filing the appeal/petition.  

(f) Who may appear. Any party may appear at the public hearing in person or by agent or attorney.  

(g) Zoning board of appeals' decision. The zoning board of appeals shall approve, deny, or table each 
appeal/petition by a public vote. An action to table shall include justification of such action and a specific 
meeting date at which the appeal/petition is to be reconsidered. If there is not a full zoning board of appeals 
board present at the public hearing, the appellant/petitioner may request to table the appeal/petition to the 
next zoning board of appeals public hearing, provided the appellant/petitioner requests to table the agenda 
item prior to the presentation. A new legal advertisement will be required with an announcement to a 
specific meeting date if an appeal/petition is tabled. The property shall be reposted with new signage 
indicating the new public hearing dates.  

(h) Time limit on zoning board of appeals decision. The zoning board of appeals shall reach a decision following a 
public hearing within 45 calendar days or the appeal/petition shall be deemed approved.  

(i) Appellate review. Decisions of the zoning board of appeals made pursuant to this article shall be subject to 
appellate review by the superior court pursuant to its appellate jurisdiction from a lower judicatory body and 
shall be brought by way of a petition for such review as provided in Title 5 of the Official Code of Georgia 
Annotated. Such matters shall be reviewed on the record which shall be brought to the superior court as 
provided in said Title 5. Such appeals shall be brought within 30 days of the written decision of the appealed 
action. The zoning administrator shall have authority, without additional action of the zoning board of 
appeals, to approve or issue any form or certificate necessary to perfect any petition required by Title 5 of 
the Official Code of Georgia Annotated for review of lower judicatory bodies. Service of any such petition 
may be effected on or accepted by the zoning administrator on behalf of the zoning board of appeals, during 



 

 

 
    Created: 2025-09-23 13:12:49 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 20) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

normal business hours, at the offices of the planning and zoning department. Service of any such petition on 
the board of commissioners may be effected on or accepted by the chairman of the board of commissioners, 
or his or her designee, at the offices of the board of commissioners during normal business hours.  

(Ord. No. 2015-06, § 1, 3-26-2015; Ord. No. 2017-11, § 1, 6-22-2017; Ord. No. 2023-05, § 1, 6-22-2023) 

 





 pg. 1 1368-25 

PETITION No. 1368-25 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Rezone 8.053 acres from R-70 to A-R 
   
PARCEL NUMBER:  0722 023 
 
EXISTING ZONING: R-70 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: A-R 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-Family Residential  
 
PROPOSED USE: Agriculture- Residential 
 
LOCATION:  183 Sun Road 
 
LOT SIZE:  8.053 Acres 
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  7th District, Land Lot(s) 75 
 
OWNER(S):  Stuart Reagan and Laura K. Reagan 
 
APPLICANT(S): Stuart Reagan and Laura K. Reagan 
 
AGENT(S):  N/A 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  December 4, 20205, at 7:00 PM,  Tabled from the Planning 
Commission Hearing on November 6, 2025.  
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  January 22, 2026, at 5:00 PM 
 
 
 
REQUEST 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from R-70 to A-R. 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT & RECOMMENDATION 
 
The lot is a legal lot of record and meets or exceeds all the requirements of the A-R zoning district, as does 
the existing house.  The Future Land Use Map designates this area as Rural Residential-2, which has a 2-
acre minimum parcel size. Since A-R is a less intense/lower density zoning, the request to rezone to the A-R 
zoning district is appropriate and is consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive Plan. 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of the request to rezone to A-R.  



 pg. 2 1368-25 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 
The subject property is currently zoned R-70. It was rezoned from A-R to R-70 as part of a blanket rezoning 
initiated by the County in 1973. The property is currently developed with a single-family residence. 
 
B. ADJACENT ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 
The parcels surrounding the subject property are zoned R-70, having been part of the aforementioned 
blanket rezoning in 1973.  Many other parcels in the general area are zoned A-R. The Future Land Use Map 
for this property and all the surrounding properties is Rural Residential-2, 1 Unit/2 Acres. See the attached 
Zoning Map and Future Land Use Map.  
 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Future Land Use Plan 

North 25+ R-70 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit 
/2 acres) 

East  25+ R-70 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit 
/2 acres) 

South (across Sun 
Road) 

25+ R-70 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit 
/2 acres) 

West  10  R-70 Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit 
/2 acres) 

 
 

C. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

 Water System – No objections. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections. 
 Fire – No comments. 
 Environmental Health - This office has no objection to the proposed rezoning.  
 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route.  



 pg. 3 1368-25 

STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-300. - Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation.  
All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the relationship of 
the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county The following factors shall 
be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning commission and the board of 
commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning: 
(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained therein; 
(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby 

property; 
(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome 

use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools; 
(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the 

property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Rural Residential-2 Uses. This request does 

conform to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 
2. The area around the subject property is an area that already has various residential and agricultural 

uses. Staff does not anticipate that this rezoning will have an adverse impact on the adjacent parcels. 
3. It is staff’s opinion that the zoning proposal will not have an excessive or burdensome impact on 

streets, utilities, or schools. 
4. The proposal is consistent in character and use with the surrounding uses as agricultural and rural 

residential. 
  



 pg. 4 1368-25 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-125. A-R, Agricultural-Residential District. 
(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures having a very low density 
single-family residential and agricultural character and designed to protect against the depreciating effects 
of small lot, residential development and those uses which are incompatible with such a residential and 
agricultural environment.  
(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the A-R zoning district:  

(1) Single-family dwelling;  
(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter);  
(3) Growing of crops and the on-premises sale of produce and agricultural products, provided 50 
percent of the produce/products sold shall be grown on-premises;  
(4) Plant nurseries and greenhouses (no sales of related garden supplies);  
(5) Raising of livestock; aquaculture, including pay fishing; apiary (all beehives shall comply with the 
required setbacks); and the sale thereof; and  
(6) One semi-trailer/box truck utilized as a farm outbuilding, provided the property is a minimum of 
five acres and the semi-trailer/box truck is only used to store agricultural items.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the A-R zoning district provided that 
all conditions specified in article VII of this chapter. Conditional uses, nonconformances, transportation 
corridor overlay zone, and commercial development standards are met:  

(1) Aircraft landing area;  
(2) Animal hospital, kennel or veterinary clinic;  
(3) A-R bed and breakfast inn;  
(4) A-R wedding/event facility;  
(5) Cemetery;  
(6) Church and/or other place of worship;  
(7) Colleges and university, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;  
(8) Commercial driving range and related accessories;  
(9) Child care facility;  
(10) Deer processing facility.  
(11) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas;  
(12) Farm outbuildings, including horse stables, auxiliary structures, and greenhouses (permanent 
or temporary);  
(13) Golf course (minimum 18-hole regulation) and related accessories;  
(14) Home occupation;  
(15) Horse show, rodeo, carnival, and/or community fair;  
(16) Hospital;  
(17) Kennel (see animal hospital, kennel, and/or veterinary clinic);  
(18) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium;  
(19) Processing, packaging, or handling of perishable agricultural products (i.e. fruits and vegetables) 
which are grown on premises;  



 pg. 5 1368-25 

(20) Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by nonprofit organizations as so registered 
with the state secretary of state office;  
(21) Religious tent meeting; and  
(22) Shooting range, outdoor.  

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the A-R zoning district shall be as 
follows:  

(1) Lot area: 217,800 square feet (five acres).  
(2) Lot width: 250 feet.  
(3) Floor area: 1,200 square feet.  
(4) Front yard setback:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  
1. Arterial: 100 feet.  
2. Collector: 100 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 75 feet.  
(5) Rear yard setback: 75 feet.  
(6) Side yard setback: 50 feet.  
(7) Building height.  

a. 35 feet as defined in article III of this chapter.  
b. The limitation on height shall not apply to agricultural structures such as storage barns, 
silos, or other types of structure not normally designed for human occupation except that 
when an agricultural structure exceeds the maximum building height the minimum distance 
from property lines to any building shall be increased one foot for every two feet or part 
thereof of building height over 35 feet.  

(e) Special regulations. Prior to the issuance of development and/or building permits, a site plan, as 
applicable, shall be submitted to the zoning administrator and approved by the appropriate county officials. 
This requirement shall apply to all permitted uses and conditional uses allowed in the AR zoning district 
except single-family dwellings; residential accessory structures; growing crops and the on-premises sale of 
produce at agricultural stands of 100 square feet or less of floor area; growing and seasonal sale of 
Christmas trees; plant nursery, landscape tree farm, or greenhouse operations existing prior to the effective 
date of June 26, 2003; and the raising and/or selling of livestock.  
 



 pg. 6 1368-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 7 1368-25 

 



 pg. 8 1368-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 9 1368-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 10 1368-25 

 
 



 pg. 11 1368-25 

 



 pg. 12 1368-25 

 
 
 
 



1368-25

mbinns
Line



1368-25

mbinns
Line





1368-25

mbinns
Line



















 pg. 1 1369-25-A-B 

PETITION No. 1369-25-A-B 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   A. Rezone Parcel No.0433 049 (3.00 acres) from R-45 (Single-Family 

Residential) to  A-R (Agriculture-Residential); this parcel is labelled Tract 2 in 
the attached survey. 

 
B. Rezone Parcel No. 0433 051 (3.00 acres) from R-45 (Single-Family 
Residential) to  A-R (Agriculture-Residential); this parcel is labelled Tract 1 in 
the attached survey. 

   
EXISTING ZONING: R-45 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: A-R 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-Family Residential  
 
PROPOSED USE: Agriculture- Residential 
 
LOCATION:  229 Fletcher Ford Road 
 
LOT SIZE:  6.00 Acres, total 
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 183 
 
OWNER(S):  McCotter Family Trust 
 
APPLICANT(S): Tate McCotter and Stacee McCotter, Trustees 
 
AGENT(S):  N/A 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  December 4, 2025, at 7:00 PM, Tabled from the Planning 
Commission Hearing on November 6, 2025.  
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  January 22, 2026, at 5:00 PM 
 
 
 
REQUEST: The applicants are requesting to rezone two parcels to A-R,  with the intent of combining them 
into a single parcel that will meet the dimensional requirements of A-R zoning district.  
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT & RECOMMENDATION 
 
As defined in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Plan, Agricultural-Residential is 
designated for this area, so the request for A-R zoning district is appropriate. In their current configuration, 
neither parcel meets the minimum lot size for the A-R zoning. Therefore, conditions are recommended to 
ensure they are combined, which will resolve this issue. 
 
1369-25-A - Based on the Staff Analysis, Planning & Zoning Staff recommends CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 
of the request for a zoning of A-R, Agricultural-Residential, subject to the following: 



 pg. 2 1369-25-A-B 

 
1. All parcels that are the subject of this petition shall be combined by a recorded final plat within 180 

days of the approval of the petition or prior to the submittal of a building permit, whichever comes 
first.  
 

1369-25-B - Based on the Staff Analysis, Planning & Zoning Staff recommends CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 
of the request for a zoning of A-R, Agricultural-Residential, subject to the following: 
 

1. All parcels that are the subject of this petition shall be combined by a recorded final plat within 180 
days of the approval of the petition or prior to the submittal of a site development plan, whichever 
comes first.  

  



 pg. 3 1369-25-A-B 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 
The subject properties are currently zoned R-45. They were rezoned from A-R to R-45, Conditional, under 
Petition No. 810-92, which was approved October 22, 1992. Tract 2 is developed with a single-family 
residence, and Tract 1 is undeveloped. The condition attached to the R-45 rezoning simply restricted the 
project to the development of 2 lots. 
 
B. ADJACENT ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 
Most of the property in the surrounding area is zoned A-R, Agricultural-Residential. The Future Land Use 
Map for this property and all the surrounding properties is Agriculture-Residential, 1 Unit/5 Acres. See the 
attached Zoning Map and Future Land Use Map for additional details.  
 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Future Land Use Plan 

North 100+ A-R Agricultural- 
Residential 

Agricultural-Residential (1 
unit /5 acres) 

East  100+ A-R 
Agricultural- 
Residential 

Agricultural-Residential (1 
unit /5 acres) 

South (across Fletcher 
Ford Road) 100+ A-R 

Agricultural- 
Residential 

Agricultural-Residential (1 
unit /5 acres) 

West  100+ A-R 
Agricultural- 
Residential 

Agricultural-Residential (1 
unit /5 acres) 

 
 

C. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

 Water System – No objections. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections. 

o Road Frontage Right of Way Dedication – Fletcher Ford Road is a prescriptive 
easement gravel road in Fayette County.  With no density increase through rezoning 
a combination plat will not require a dedication of right of way. 

 Traffic Data – Fayette County does not have any recorded traffic data for this 
roadway. 

 Sight Distance and access – Fletcher Ford Road is a county local road with a 25mp 
speed limit.  Sight Distance of 280 feet would be required for any additional driveway 
access requested. 

 Floodplain Management -- The property DOES NOT contain floodplain per FEMA 
FIRM panel 13113C0160E dated September 26, 2008.   

 Wetlands -- The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of 
the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.  

 Watershed Protection -- There ARE NOT state waters located on the subject 
property, and it WILL BE subject to the Fayette County Article VII Watershed 
Protection Ordinance.  

 Groundwater -- The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 



 pg. 4 1369-25-A-B 

 Post Construction Stormwater Management -- This development WILL BE 
subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance if re-zoned 
and developed with more than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface for a Major 
Final Plat. 

 Fire – No comments. 
 Environmental Health - This office has no objection to the proposed rezoning.  
 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route. 

 
STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-300. - Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation.  
All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the relationship of 
the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county The following factors shall 
be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning commission and the board of 
commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning: 
(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained therein; 
(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby 

property; 
(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome 

use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools; 
(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the 

property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Agricultural-Residential Uses. This request 

does conform to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 
2. The area around the subject property is an area that already has various residential and agricultural 

uses. Staff does not anticipate that this rezoning will have an adverse impact on the adjacent parcels. 
3. It is staff’s opinion that the zoning proposal will not have an excessive or burdensome impact on 

streets, utilities, or schools. 
4. The proposal is consistent in character and use with the surrounding uses as agricultural and rural 

residential. 
 
  



 pg. 5 1369-25-A-B 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-125. A-R, Agricultural-Residential District. 
(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures having a very low density 
single-family residential and agricultural character and designed to protect against the depreciating effects 
of small lot, residential development and those uses which are incompatible with such a residential and 
agricultural environment.  
(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the A-R zoning district:  

(1) Single-family dwelling;  
(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter);  
(3) Growing of crops and the on-premises sale of produce and agricultural products, provided 50 
percent of the produce/products sold shall be grown on-premises;  
(4) Plant nurseries and greenhouses (no sales of related garden supplies);  
(5) Raising of livestock; aquaculture, including pay fishing; apiary (all beehives shall comply with the 
required setbacks); and the sale thereof; and  
(6) One semi-trailer/box truck utilized as a farm outbuilding, provided the property is a minimum of 
five acres and the semi-trailer/box truck is only used to store agricultural items.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the A-R zoning district provided that 
all conditions specified in article VII of this chapter. Conditional uses, nonconformances, transportation 
corridor overlay zone, and commercial development standards are met:  

(1) Aircraft landing area;  
(2) Animal hospital, kennel or veterinary clinic;  
(3) A-R bed and breakfast inn;  
(4) A-R wedding/event facility;  
(5) Cemetery;  
(6) Church and/or other place of worship;  
(7) Colleges and university, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;  
(8) Commercial driving range and related accessories;  
(9) Child care facility;  
(10) Deer processing facility.  
(11) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas;  
(12) Farm outbuildings, including horse stables, auxiliary structures, and greenhouses (permanent 
or temporary);  
(13) Golf course (minimum 18-hole regulation) and related accessories;  
(14) Home occupation;  
(15) Horse show, rodeo, carnival, and/or community fair;  
(16) Hospital;  
(17) Kennel (see animal hospital, kennel, and/or veterinary clinic);  
(18) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium;  
(19) Processing, packaging, or handling of perishable agricultural products (i.e. fruits and vegetables) 
which are grown on premises;  



 pg. 6 1369-25-A-B 

(20) Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by nonprofit organizations as so registered 
with the state secretary of state office;  
(21) Religious tent meeting; and  
(22) Shooting range, outdoor.  

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the A-R zoning district shall be as 
follows:  

(1) Lot area: 217,800 square feet (five acres).  
(2) Lot width: 250 feet.  
(3) Floor area: 1,200 square feet.  
(4) Front yard setback:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  
1. Arterial: 100 feet.  
2. Collector: 100 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 75 feet.  
(5) Rear yard setback: 75 feet.  
(6) Side yard setback: 50 feet.  
(7) Building height.  

a. 35 feet as defined in article III of this chapter.  
b. The limitation on height shall not apply to agricultural structures such as storage barns, 
silos, or other types of structure not normally designed for human occupation except that 
when an agricultural structure exceeds the maximum building height the minimum distance 
from property lines to any building shall be increased one foot for every two feet or part 
thereof of building height over 35 feet.  

(e) Special regulations. Prior to the issuance of development and/or building permits, a site plan, as 
applicable, shall be submitted to the zoning administrator and approved by the appropriate county officials. 
This requirement shall apply to all permitted uses and conditional uses allowed in the AR zoning district 
except single-family dwellings; residential accessory structures; growing crops and the on-premises sale of 
produce at agricultural stands of 100 square feet or less of floor area; growing and seasonal sale of 
Christmas trees; plant nursery, landscape tree farm, or greenhouse operations existing prior to the effective 
date of June 26, 2003; and the raising and/or selling of livestock.  
 



 pg. 7 1369-25-A-B 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 8 1369-25-A-B 

 



 pg. 9 1369-25-A-B 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 10 1369-25-A-B 

 
 
 



 pg. 11 1369-25-A-B 

 
 
 



 pg. 12 1369-25-A-B 

 
 
 
 



1369-25-A-B

mbinns
Line



1369-25-A

1369-25-B

mbinns
Line

mbinns
Line





1369-25-A-B

mbinns
Line



















 pg. 1 1370-25 

PETITION No. 1370-25 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Rezone 6.00 acres from A-R to R-80 
   
PARCEL NUMBER:  0448 013 
 
EXISTING ZONING: A-R 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-80 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-Family Residential  
 
PROPOSED USE: Single-Family Residential 
 
LOCATION:  366 Antioch Road 
 
LOT SIZE:  6.00Acres 
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 249 & 250 
 
OWNER(S):  Jean Allen Living Trust, Jerome Allen, P.O.A. 
 
APPLICANT(S): Jean Allen Living Trust, Jerome Allen, P.O.A. 
 
AGENT(S):  N/A 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  December 4, 2025, at 7:00 PM, Tabled from the Planning 
Commission Hearing on November 6, 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  January 22, 2026, at 5:00 PM 
 
 
 
REQUEST 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from A-R to R-80. 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT & RECOMMENDATION 
 
The lot is a legal lot of record and meets or exceeds all the requirements of the A-R zoning district.   The 
Future Land Use Map designates this area as Rural Residential-3, which has a 3-acre minimum parcel size. 
The request to rezone to R-80 is consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The existing house on the parcel DOES NOT meet the dimensional requirements for R-80 for building 
setbacks nor for minimum floor area. The minimum side yard setback in the R-80 zoning district is 30 feet; 
the house is 21.88 feet from the side property line on the north side. The minimum floor area requirement 
in the R-80 zoning district is 2500 square feet; the house is 1724 square feet in area. 
 
However, the existing house is a legal, nonconforming structure. Sec. 110-170. – Nonconformances. (q)(3) 



 pg. 2 1370-25 

states that “A property that is improved with a legally existing residential structure, which would become 
nonconforming in terms of the minimum square footage requirements within the zoning district for which 
a rezoning is being sought, may be considered for rezoning. Any actions necessary to achieve compliance 
will be handled through conditions of rezoning approval.” 
 
Staff recommends CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the request to rezone from A-R to R-80, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall obtain a variance to the minimum floor area requirement in R-80, or make 
appropriate modifications to the house, within 180 calendar days or before applying for any final 
plats or permits, whichever comes first. 

2. The applicant shall obtain a variance to the side yard setback requirement in R-80, or make 
appropriate modifications to the house, within 180 calendar days or before applying for any final 
plats or permits, whichever comes first. 
  



 pg. 3 1370-25 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 
The subject property is currently zoned A-R, Agricultural-Residential. The property is currently developed 
with a single-family residence. 
 
B. ADJACENT ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 
The parcels surrounding the subject property are zoned R-70, having been part of the aforementioned 
blanket rezoning in 1973.  Many other parcels in the general area are zoned A-R. The Future Land Use Map 
for this property and all the surrounding properties is Rural Residential-2, 1 Unit/2 Acres. See the attached 
Zoning Map and Future Land Use Map.  
 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Future Land Use Plan 

North 25+ R-40 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-3 (1 unit /3 
acres) 

East  100+ R-80 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-3 (1 unit /3 
acres) 

South 100+ R-80 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-3 (1 unit /3 
acres) 

West  3 
3 

A-R 
R-72 

Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-3 (1 unit /3 
acres) 

 
 

C. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

 Water System – No objections. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections. 

o Road Frontage Right of Way Dedication – Antioch Road is a deeded 80 foot right 
of way in Fayette County.  No dedication of right of way is needed. 

o Traffic Data – Antioch Road has an Annual Average Daily Volume of approximately 
2,330 Vehicles Per Day as estimated by GDOT at a location 0.5 miles north of this 
site. 

o Sight Distance and access – Antioch Road is a collector road with a 45mp speed 
limit.  Sight Distance of 500 feet would be required for any additional driveway 
access requested. 

o Floodplain Management -- The property DOES NOT contain floodplain per FEMA 
FIRM panel 13113C0114E dated September 26, 2008.   

o Wetlands -- The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of 
the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.  

o Watershed Protection -- There ARE NOT state waters located on the subject 
property, and it WILL BE subject to the Fayette County Article VII Watershed 
Protection Ordinance.  

o Groundwater -- The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
o Post Construction Stormwater Management -- This development WILL BE 

subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance if re-zoned 



 pg. 4 1370-25 

and developed with more than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface for a Major 
Final Plat. 

 Fire – No comments. 
 Environmental Health - This office has no objection to the proposed rezoning.  
 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route. 

 
STANDARDS 

 
Sec. 110-300. - Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation.  
All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the relationship of 
the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county The following factors shall 
be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning commission and the board of 
commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning: 
(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained therein; 
(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby 

property; 
(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome 

use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools; 
(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the 

property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Rural Residential-3 Uses. This request does 

conform to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 
2. The area around the subject property is an area that already has various residential and agricultural 

uses. Staff does not anticipate that this rezoning will have an adverse impact on the adjacent parcels. 
3. It is staff’s opinion that the zoning proposal will not have an excessive or burdensome impact on 

streets, utilities, or schools. 
4. The proposal is consistent in character and use with the surrounding uses as rural residential. 

  



 pg. 5 1370-25 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

Sec. 110-129. - R-80, Single-Family Residential District. 

(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures having a very low density 
single-family residential character and designed to protect against the depreciating effects of small lot 
development and those uses incompatible with such a residential environment. 
(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the R-80 zoning district: 

(1) Single-family dwelling; 
(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter); and 
(3) Growing crops, gardens. 

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the R-80 zoning district provided that 
all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 

(1) Church and/or other place of worship; 
(2) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas; 
(3) Home occupation; 
(4) Horse quarters; and 
(5) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, housing, 

athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium. 
(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-80 zoning district shall be as 
follows: 

(1) Lot area per dwelling: 130,680 square feet (three acres). 
(2) Lot width: 175 feet. 
(3) Floor area: 2,500 square feet. 
(4) Front yard setback: 

a. Major thoroughfare: 
1. Arterial: 75 feet. 
2. Collector: 75 feet. 

b. Minor thoroughfare: 50 feet. 
(5) Rear yard setback: 50 feet. 
(6) Side yard setback: 30 feet. 
(7) Height limit: 35 feet. 

 



 pg. 6 1370-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 7 1370-25 

 



 pg. 8 1370-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 9 1370-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 10 1370-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 11 1370-25 

 
SURVEY – SETBACKS IN CURRENT A-R ZONING 

 



 pg. 12 1370-25 

 
SETBACKS IF REZONED TO R-80 



dsims
Text Box
678-416-2809











































 pg. 1 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

PETITION NO:  1371-25 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Rezone from R-40 to C-H, Highway Commercial District     
   
PARCEL NUMBER:  1306 023 

 
PROPOSED USE:  Commercial Uses  
 
EXISTING USE:  Undeveloped 
 
LOCATION:  2290 Hwy 138  
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  13th District, Land Lot 198 
 
ACREAGE: 15.733 acres  
 
OWNER(S):  CK 138 LLC 
 
APPLICANT(S): CK 138 LLC 
 
AGENT:  Dakota Carruthers, Parker Poe Adams and Bernstein LLP 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  December 4, 2025, Tabled from the Planning Commission 
Hearing on November 6, 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  January 22, 2026, 5:00 PM 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
APPLICANT'S INTENT 
 
Applicant proposes to rezone 15.733 acres from R-40 (Single-Family Residential) to C-H  (Highway 
Commercial) for the purposes of future office development.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
As defined in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, General Business Use is designated for this 
area. However, because the property is immediately adjacent to C-H zoned properties and uses, staff 
recommends APPROVAL of the request for a zoning of C-H, Highway Commercial.  
 



 pg. 2 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: The property is a legal lot of record based on the 

ordinance criteria. An approved minor final plat was recorded in Plat Book 101 Page 168 on 
November 22, 2021.  

 
B. REZONING HISTORY: A portion of the original parent parcel of this property was the subject 

of Rezoning Petition No. 1305-21. That part of the property was rezoned to C-H, Conditional 
on May 27, 2021. The balance of the property remained R-40 and is the subject of this petition. 

 
 This parcel is also subject to the requirements of Sec. 110-173. – (5) SR 138 and North SR 314 

overlay zone. – The overlay zone provides additional setbacks, architectural and lighting 
standards, and access standards. 
 

C. CURRENT DEVELOPMENT HISTORY: The property is currently undeveloped. 
  

B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES: The subject property is bounded by the following 
adjacent zoning districts and uses: 

 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Comprehensive Plan 

North (across 
SR) 

100+ N/A Clayton County Clayton County 

East  
7.5 
6.7 

R-40 
C-H 

Single Family Residential 
Commercial 

Office 
Commercial 

South 33 
20 

R-40 
G-B 

Single Family Residential 
General Business, 
undeveloped 

Low Density Residential (1 Unit 
/1 acre) and Office 

West  
4.5 
85 

R-40 
G-B 

Single Family Residential 
General Business, 
undeveloped 

Low Density Residential (1 Unit 
/1 acre) and General Business 

 
C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

Future Land Use Plan: The subject property lies within an area designated for General 
Business. The list of uses allowed in both G-B and C-H are included in this report. 

 
This request DOES CONFORM to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan by virtue of the fact 
that it is adjacent to other C-H zoning, and by the similarities in C-H and G-B districts. 

 
D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW 
           

Access & Right-of Way: The property has existing access on SR 138; access will be under the 
jurisdiction of Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) and will be addressed when 
site development plans are submitted. 
 
Site Plan: The applicant submitted a survey and a concept plan for the property. 
 

  



 pg. 3 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
E. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 

 
 Water System – Area not currently served by the Fayette County Water System. 

Water line terminates at property line to the east. Extension of water line shall be 
responsible for extension of  

 Public Works  
o Road Frontage Right of Way Dedication – The parcel is limited to only 

GDOT access on SR 54 East. 
o Traffic Data -- The parcel fronts SR 54 which has an Annual Average Daily 

Volume of approximately 25,300 VPD as estimated by GDOT in February 
2024 at a location 0.1 miles west of the site near the Ebenezer Road redlight.  
The use of the site as O-I should not have a significant increase in traffic 
volume on SR 54 or any local side streets. 

o Sight Distance and access -- GDOT will provide access/permits to SR 54 and 
sight distance requirements. 

o GDOT Comments – Planning and zoning has not received comments from 
Stanford Taylor at GDOT as of this report.  

 Environmental Management 
 Floodplain Management -- The site DOES NOT contain floodplain per FEMA 

FIRM panel 13113CO083EE dated September 26, 2008.  The parcel DOES 
NOT contain additional floodplain delineated in the Fayette County 2013 
Dewberry Limited Flood study. 

 Wetlands -- The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. 
Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland 
Inventory Map.  

o Watershed Protection -- There ARE NO state waters located on the subject 
p roperty per Fayette County GIS.  

o Groundwater -- The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
 Post Construction Stormwater Management -- This development WILL BE 

subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance. 
o Tree Protection and Landscaping 
This parcel WILL BE subject to the tree protection and Landscaping ordinances. 

 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the rezoning.  
 Fire – No objections to the requested rezoning.    

o GDOT – The developer shall obtain access to the property from State Route 138.  
A permit from GDOT is required. 

  



 pg. 4 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

STANDARDS 
 

Sec. 110-300. - Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation.  
All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the 
relationship of the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county The 
following factors shall be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning 
commission and the board of commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning: 
(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained 

therein; 
(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 

nearby property; 
(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or 

burdensome use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools; 
(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of 

the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning 
proposal. 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for General Business Uses. This request 

does not conform strictly to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan but may be given 
consideration for a C-H zoning because of the immediate adjacency to other C-H zoned 
parcels. 

2. The area around the subject property is an area that already has various commercial and 
office uses. There are some residential uses to the south and east, but staff does not 
anticipate that the C-H uses within this area will have an adverse impact on the adjacent 
parcels. 

3. It is staff’s opinion that the zoning proposal will not have an excessive or burdensome 
impact on streets, utilities, or schools. 

4. The proposal is consistent in character and use with the surrounding uses as Office-
Institutional. 

  



 pg. 5 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-144. C-H, Highway Commercial District. 
(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures to provide and 

encourage proper grouping and development of roadside uses, which include a wide variety of 
sales and services that will best accommodate the needs of the county and the traveling public, 
reducing traffic congestion, hazards and blight along the public streets.  

(b) Permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the C-H zoning district:  
(1) Ambulance service, including non-emergency medical transport service;  
(2) Amusement or recreational facility, indoor or outdoor;  
(3) Appliance sales, installation and/or repair;  
(4) Armories, for meetings and training military organizations;  
(5) Art studio;  
(6) Auto/vehicle repair. All service, repairs and diagnostics, with the exception of emissions 

testing, shall be conducted within an enclosed building;  
(7) Bakery;  
(8) Bank and/or financial institution;  
(9) Banquet hall/event facility;  
(10) Bookbinding;  
(11) Building/development, contracting, and related activities (including, but not limited to: 

door and window sales and/or installation, electrical, flooring sales and/or installation, 
entertainment system sales and/or installation, general contractor, grading, gutter sales 
and/or installation, insulation sales and/or installation, landscaping, lighting sales and/or 
installation, painting, pressure washing, plumbing, remodeling, roofing sales and/or 
installation, siding sales and/or installation, sales and storage of building supplies and 
materials, security system sales, installation and service, solar and wind equipment sales 
and/or installation, and incidental contractor equipment maintenance);  

(12) Bus passenger station (pick-up and drop-off only);  
(13) Cabinet manufacturing, sales, repair and/or installation;  
(14) Car wash and/or detailing facility;  
(15) Catering service;  
(16) Church and/or other place of worship excluding outdoor recreation, parsonage, and 

cemetery or mausoleum;  
(17) Clothing store and/or variety store;  
(18) College and/or university, including classrooms and/or administration only;  
(19) Copy shop;  
(20) Cultural facility;  
(21) Day spa;  
(22) Department store;  
(23) Drug store;  
(24) Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to: academic; art; 

computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; music; professional/business/trade; martial arts; 
and similar facilities;  

(25) Electronic sales and/or repair;  



 pg. 6 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

(26) Emission testing facility (inside only);  
(27) Engraving;  
(28) Firearm sales and/or gunsmith;  
(29) Flea market, indoor;  
(30) Florist shop;  
(31) Freezer locker service, ice storage;  
(32) Freight express office;  
(33) Funeral establishment (where funeral services, excluding a crematorium, may be 

provided);  
(34) Gift shop;  
(35) Glass sales;  
(36) Grocery store;  
(37) Hardware store;  
(38) Health club and/or fitness center;  
(39) Hotel;  
(40) Jewelry shop;  
(41) Laboratory serving professional requirements, (e.g., medical, dental, etc.);  
(42) Library;  
(43) Magazine publication and/or distribution;  
(44) Manufactured home and/or building sales;  
(45) Medical/dental office (human treatment);  
(46) Messenger/courier service;  
(47) Military recruiting office;  
(48) Movie theatre and/or drive-in;  
(49) Museum;  
(50) Music teaching studio;  
(51) Newspaper publication and/or distribution;  
(52) Office;  
(53) Office equipment sales and/or service;  
(54) Parking garage/lot;  
(55) Pawn shops;  
(56) Personal services, including, but not limited to: alterations; barber shop; beauty salon; 

clothing/costume rentals; counseling services; electrolysis and/or hair removal; fitness 
center; laundry drop-off/pick-up; locksmith; nail salon; photography studio; shoe repair; 
and tanning salon;  

(57) Pest control;  
(58) Plant nursery, growing crops/garden, and/or related sales;  
(59) Printing, graphics, and/or reproductions;  
(60) Private clubs and/or lodges;  
(61) Private school, including classrooms and/or administration only;  
(62) Recording studio (audio and video);  
(63) Radio studio;  
(64) Railroad station;  
(65) Rent-alls;  



 pg. 7 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

(66) Restaurant, including drive-in and/or drive-through;  
(67) Retail establishment;  
(68) Smoking lounge (subject to state and local tobacco sales and smoking laws);  
(69) Tattoo parlor;  
(70) Taxidermist;  
(71) Taxi service/limousine service/shuttle service (no on-site maintenance and/or repair);  
(72) Television/movie studio;  
(73) Upholstery shop; and  
(74) Utility trailers sales and/or rental.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the C-H zoning district 
provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met:  
(1) Adult day care facility;  
(2) Amphitheater;  
(3) Animal hospital, kennel (commercial or noncommercial), and/or veterinary clinic;  
(4) Automobile service station, including gasoline sales and/or inside or outside emission 

testing, in conjunction with a convenience store;  
(5) Campground facilities;  
(6) Care home, convalescent center, and/or nursing home;  
(7) Cemetery;  
(8) Charter motor coach service;  
(9) Church and/or other place of worship;  
(10) College and/or university, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, 

housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;  
(11) Commercial driving range and related accessories;  
(12) Child care facility;  
(13) Dry cleaning plant;  
(14) Experimental laboratory;  
(15) Golf course (minimum 18-hole regulation) and related accessories;  
(16) Home occupation;  
(17) Horse show, rodeo, carnival, and/or community fair;  
(18) Hospital;  
(19) Laundromat, self-service or otherwise;  
(20) Outdoor amusement facilities, rides, structures over 35 feet in height, including, but not 

limited to bungee and parachute jumping;  
(21) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, 

housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;  
(22) Religious tent meeting;  
(23) Seasonal sales, outdoor;  
(24) Self-storage facility (external and/or internal access);  
(25) Single-family residence and residential accessory structures and/or uses (see article III of 

this chapter);  
(26) Shooting range, indoor;  
(27) Stadium, athletic; and  
(28) Temporary tent sales.  



 pg. 8 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

(29) Vehicle/boat sales.  
(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the C-H zoning district 

shall be as follows:  
(1) Lot area:  

a. Where a central water distribution system is provided: 43,560 square feet (one acre).  
b. Where central sanitary sewage and central water distribution systems are provided: 

21,780 square feet (one-half acre).  
(2) Lot width: 125 feet.  
(3) Front yard setback:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  
1. Arterial: 75 feet.  
2. Collector: 70 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 65 feet.  
(4) Rear yard setback: 15 feet.  
(5) Side yard setback: 15 feet.  
(6) Buffer. If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning district, a minimum buffer 

of 50 feet adjacent to the lot line shall be provided in addition to the required setback and 
the setback shall be measured from the buffer.  

(7) Height limit: 35 feet.  
(8) Screening dimensions for parking and service areas as provided in article III of this chapter 

and chapter 104.  
(9) Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: 60 percent of total lot area.  

 
Sec. 110-150. - G-B, General-Business District. 

(a) Purpose. The purpose of the General Business District (G-B) is to provide for business development 
that contains uses which are free from such nuisances as noise, vibration, smoke, gas, fume, odor, 
dust, radiation or other injurious or noxious conditions related to those uses. The G-B zoning district 
limits the development of retail commercial uses and reduces the resulting traffic generation and 
noise associated with this type of development. The uses allowed in this zoning district could lend to 
a business park development pattern. 
(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the G-B zoning district: 
(1) Auction house (indoor only); 
(2) Banquet hall and/or catering service; 
(3) Business, professional, and/or government offices; 
(4) Business support centers and/or call centers; 
(5) College and/or university, classrooms and/or administration only; 
(6) Computer data services and/or information technology; 
(7) Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to: art; computer; dance; 
driving and/or DUI; martial arts; music; professional/business/trade; and similar facilities; 
(8) Financial, credit, real estate, and/or insurance establishments (excluding retail banking facilities or 
pawn establishments); 
(9) Health club, fitness center, and/or indoor athletic facility (excluding bowling alleys, pool rooms and 
skating rinks); 
(10) Medical supply and equipment sales; 
(11) Printing, graphic, blue printing, photography lab, and/or reproduction service; 



 pg. 9 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

(12) Private school, including, classrooms and/or administration only; 
(13) Publishing and distribution; 
(14) Restaurant supply; 
(15) Scientific, medical/dental, and/or research laboratories; 
(16) Television/radio broadcasting studio, recording studio, telecommunication, and/or movie/media 
productions (including on-site with movie/media productions, ancillary businesses that supply 
support services, equipment and resources to the movie/media industry); and 
(17) Training center, trade school, and/or vocational centers. 
(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the G-B zoning district provided 
that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 
(1) Single-family residence and residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter); 
(2) Home occupation; 
(3) College and/or university, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium; 
(4) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium; and 
(5) Self-storage facility (external and/or internal access). 
(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the G-B shall be as follows: 
(1) Lot area: 
a. Where public water is available: 43,560 square feet (one acre). 
b. Where public water is not available: 65,340 square feet (1.5 acres). 
(2) Lot width: 125 feet. 
(3) Front yard setback: 
a. Major thoroughfare: 
1. Major arterial: 100 feet. 
2. Arterial: 100 feet. 
3. Collector: 80 feet. 
b. Minor thoroughfare: 65 feet. 
(4) Rear yard setback: 25 feet. 
(5) Side yard setback: 25 feet. 
(6) Buffer. If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning district, a minimum buffer of 50 
feet shall be provided adjacent to the lot line, in addition to the required setback. The setback shall be 
measured from the buffer. 
(7) Height limit: 
a. 40 feet. 
b. Only soundstages associated with movie/media productions in this zoning district may exceed 40 
feet in height. The front setback shall be increased eight feet for every one foot of building height over 
40 feet. If the side and/or rear yards abut a residential or A-R zoning district, the setbacks shall be 
increased five feet for every one foot of building height over 40 feet. 
c. The required minimum acreage shall be increased based on building height per the table below: 

Height Limit Required 
Acreage 

50 feet 20 – 50 



 pg. 10 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

Height Limit Required 
Acreage 

55 feet >50 - 75 

60 feet >75 - 100 

65 feet >100 

  
(8) Lot coverage limit, including structures and parking area: 70 percent of total lot area. 
(9) Outside storage and refuse area requirements. The following requirements shall apply to outside 
storage and refuse areas. Where this section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive 
shall apply. 
a. Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, parts, and business vehicles shall be allowed in side 
or rear yards only, subject to screening, setback and buffer requirements. 
b. All refuse areas shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, shall be screened, and comply with the 
required buffers and setbacks. 
  



 pg. 11 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 12 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 13 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 14 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 15 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 pg. 16 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
 

SURVEY 
 



 pg. 17 Rezoning Petition No. 1371-25 

 
 
 

 
CONCEPT PLAN 

















Parker Poe
Dakota Carruthers Atlanta, GA

t: 678.690.5710
f: 404.869.6972
dakotacarruthers@parkerpoe.com

Charleston, SC 
Charlotte, NC 
Columbia, SC 
Greenville, SC 
Raleigh, NC
Spartanburg, SC
Washington, DC

September 9, 2025

Via Hand Delivery
Via Email [dbell@fayettecountyga.gov]

Deborah Bell
Director, Planning and Zoning
Fayette County, GA
140 Stonewall Avenue West, Suite 202
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214

Re: Rezoning Application (“Application”) by CK 138, LLC (“Applicant”) with respect to 
approximately 15.73 acres commonly known as 2290 Highway 138, Fayette 
County, Georgia, Fayette County Tax Parcel Number 1306 023 (the “Property”)

Letter of Intent

Dear Debbie:

This law firm has the pleasure of representing Applicant with respect to the Application. 
Applicant respectfully submits for consideration the Application, seeking a rezoning of the 
Property from the R-40 single-family residential district to the C-H Highway Commercial district1 
to allow for the development of the Property with a self-storage facility and future retail.

Background and Existing Zoning

The Property is an approximately 15.73 acre currently unimproved parcel. Applicant 
acquired the Property in 2021, along with the neighboring parcel (tax parcel 1306 128), previously 
one 22 acre parent parcel (the “Parent Parcel”). Applicant first identified the Parent Parcel as a 
prime location for a self-storage facility, and worked with the County to obtain text amendments 
to The Zoning Ordinance of Fayette County, Georgia, as amended from time to time (the 
“Ordinance”), which were passed by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on March 25, 
2021, to allow for a mix of type of self-storage facility to be located within certain zoning districts 
and with varying architectural and design controls. Following the ordinance amendment, Applicant 
rezoned the neighboring parcel and subsequently developed it as a multi-building self-storage 
facility with internal and external access.

1 If the Application is approved, Applicant will still need to apply for and obtain administrative approval 
from the County for the self-storage facility conditional use of the Property.

Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein llp 1075 Peachtree Street NE Suite 1500 Atlanta, GA 30309 
t 678.690.5750 f 404.869.6972 www.parkerpoe.com

mailto:dakotacarruthers@parkerpoe.com
mailto:dbell@fayettecountyga.gov
http://www.parkerpoe.com


Fayette County
September 9, 2025 
Page 2

Applicant intends to develop the Property for an expansion of the single-level external 
access units and RV parking at the rear of the property, as shown on the concept plan submitted 
with this Application. 2.285 acres of the property, against Highway 138 will be left undisturbed 
and marketed for retail use. The existing zoning of the Property is R-40, and is located within the 
SR138 and North SR314 Overlay Zone of the County’s Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone. 
The Property is designated as General Commercial designation on the County’s comprehensive 
plan future land use map. Parcels immediately to the west and south of the Property is zoned R- 
40 and several of the parcels to the east of the Property across Highway 314 are zoned CC and 
C-H. Directly across Highway 138 to the north are properties in Clayton County, all of which are 
zoned General Business.

Proposed Rezoning

As the County has seen in the past couple of years, this is a rapidly growing sector and 
Applicant has strategically positioned themselves as a leader in the rapidly expanding self­
storage sector across the Southeast. Applicant has developed a multitude of properties and now 
manages 7 self-storage facilities totaling just under 1 million square feet.

The proposed self-storage facility, as more particularly shown on the concept plan 
included with the Application, will meet all of the Ordinance requirements for self-storage facilities 
without variance. Specifically, the development will include expansion of the existing external 
access storage buildings with four new buildings totaling roughly 34,000 square feet and 
approximately 50 RV storage spaces to accommodate demand. Approval of the application would 
activate a now vacant property, allow for a future retail serving use along a highway corridor while 
screening the low intensity self-storage use at the rear yard. Exterior elevations for the proposed 
self-storage will match those of the existing buildings at the neighboring developed property and 
Applicant will meet all of the other design criteria specified in the Ordinance as applicable to self­
storage facilities, including those architectural standards included in the Transportation Corridor 
Overlay Zone.

The Application meets the standards for rezoning as set forth in Ordinance Section 110- 
300, and an analysis of the four (4) factors that Planning and Zoning Department, the Planning 
Commission and the Board of Commissioners shall consider when evaluating the Application 
reveals that the Application should be granted. Specifically, as outlined above, the Application is 
in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map and policies contained therein. 
Additionally, the self-storage facility use of the Property is a relatively low intense use of Property, 
placing minimal demands on parking, hours of operation, and infrastructure needs (for example, 
the Property does not have access to public sewer; instead, low occupancy levels mean septic 
service is sufficient). Moreover, there is no impact on neighboring schools.

Application Requirements

Pursuant to Article IX of the Ordinance, Applicant seeks to rezone the Property2 as 
described above and, in support of the Application, Applicant submits the following (one of each 
unless otherwise indicated):

2 Applicant notifies Fayette County of its constitutional concerns with respect to its Application. If the Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners (the “Board ) denies the Application in whole or in part, then the Property does not have a



Fayette County
September 9, 2025
Page 3

1. Signed Application form with applicable and required attachments.

2. A metes and bounds legal description of the Property.

3. Survey.

4. Deed.

5. Concept plan.

6. This Letter of Intent.

7. Application fee in the amount of $350.00.

The Application, including this Letter of Intent, support Applicant’s request for rezoning. 
Applicant respectfully requests that the Planning and Zoning Department (the “Department”) 
recommend approval of the Application to the Planning Commission and the Board of 
Commissioners. Applicant is happy to answer questions or provide any additional information 
that the Department and the County may have with regard to this Application.

Dakota Carruthers
Entitlements Manager

DC/dc/ews
cc: Chris Poholek

Ellen W. Smith, Esq.

reasonable economic use under the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance. Moreover, the Application meets the test set 
out by the Georgia Supreme Court to be used in establishing the constitutional balance between private property rights 
and zoning and planning as an expression of the government’s police power. See Guhl vs. Holcomb Bridge Road, 238 
Ga. 322 (1977). If the Board denies the Application in whole or in part, such an action will deprive Applicant and Owner 
of the ability to use the Property in accordance with its highest and best use. Similarly, if the Board rezones the Property 
to some classification other than GB or with conditions not requested by Applicant, and either without Applicant’s 
consent, then such approval would deprive Applicant and Owner of any reasonable use and development of the 
Property. Any such action is unconstitutional and will result in a taking of property rights in violation of the just 
compensation clause of the Constitution of the State of Georgia (see Ga. Const. 1983, Art. I, § 3, para. 1(a)), and the 
just compensation clause of the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution (see U.S. Const. Amend. 5). To 
the extent that the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance allows such an action by the Board, the Zoning Ordinance is 
unconstitutional. Any such denial or conditional approval would discriminate between Applicant and Owner and owners 
of similarly situated property in an arbitrary, capricious, unreasonable and unconstitutional manner in violation of Article 
I, Section I, Paragraph 2 of the Georgia Constitution and the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to 
the United States Constitution. Also, a failure to grant the Application or a conditional approval of the Application (with 
conditions not expressly approved by Applicant) would constitute a gross abuse of discretion and would constitute an 
unconstitutional violation of Applicant’s and Owner’s rights to substantive and procedural due process as guaranteed 
by the Georgia Constitution (see Ga. Const. 1983, Art. I, § 1, para. 1) and the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the 
United States Constitution (see U.S. Const. Amend. 5 and 14). Nevertheless, Applicant remains optimistic that Fayette 
County’s consideration of the Application will be conducted in a constitutional manner.



G
EO

R
G

IA
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 1
38

PU
BL

IC
 1

00
' R

/W

GEORGIA HIGHWAY 314
AKA WEST FAYETTEVILLE ROAD

PUBLIC 117' R/W

BETHSAIDA  D
RIVE

C
LA

YT
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

FA
YE

TT
E 

C
O

U
N

TY

TR
AC

T 
2

15
.7

33
65

 A
C

68
5,

35
8 

SF

ZO
N

IN
G

: C
-C

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0
ZO

N
IN

G
:G

B

ZONING: R-40

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-4

0

FO
R

 F
U

TU
R

E
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

TO
TA

L 
AR

EA
22

.4
66

09
 A

C
97

8,
62

3 
SF

FO
R

 F
U

TU
R

E
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10
W

10W10W10W

TR
AC

T 
1

6.
73

24
4 

AC
29

3,
26

5 
SF

MINOR REVISION TO THE MINOR FINAL PLAT FOR

CK 138, LLC LOCATED IN
LAND LOT 198

13TH DISTRICT
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA

L
E

G
E

N
D

A
   

  ~
 A

R
C

A
C

   
 ~

 A
C

R
E

(S
)

A
E

   
 ~

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

A
G

LC
  ~

 A
T

LA
N

T
A

 G
A

S
 L

IG
H

T
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

A
S

P
   

~ 
A

S
P

H
A

LT
B

B
   

 ~
 B

O
T

T
O

M
 O

F
 B

A
N

K
B

C
   

 ~
 B

A
C

K
 O

F
 C

U
R

B
B

/C
   

~ 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
R

N
E

R
B

.F
.E

 ~
 B

A
S

E
 F

LO
O

D
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

B
L 

   
~ 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 L

IN
E

B
M

   
 ~

 B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
B

P
F

   
~ 

B
LU

E
 P

IN
 F

LA
G

B
P

M
   

~ 
B

LU
E

 P
A

IN
T

 M
A

R
K

B
S

   
 ~

 B
O

T
T

O
M

 O
F

 S
LO

P
E

B
S

O
   

~ 
B

E
LL

S
O

U
T

H
 T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

O
.

B
S

O
C

M
 ~

 B
E

LL
S

O
U

T
H

 C
A

B
LE

 M
A

R
K

E
R

B
S

O
M

H
 ~

 B
E

LL
S

O
U

T
H

 M
A

N
H

O
LE

B
W

   
 ~

 B
O

T
T

O
M

 O
F

 W
A

LL
B

/W
   

~ 
B

A
R

B
E

D
 W

IR
E

C
B

   
 ~

 C
A

T
C

H
 B

A
S

IN
C

C
A

   
~ 

C
O

R
N

E
R

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 A
P

R
O

N
C

C
W

   
~ 

C
O

R
N

E
R

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

LK
C

I  
  ~

 C
U

R
B

 IN
LE

T
C

L 
   

~ 
C

E
N

T
E

R
LI

N
E

C
/L

   
~ 

C
H

A
IN

LI
N

K
C

M
F

   
~ 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

 F
O

U
N

D
C

M
P

   
~ 

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L 
P

IP
E

C
O

   
 ~

 C
LE

A
N

O
U

T
C

O
M

M
  ~

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
C

T
   

 ~
 C

R
IM

P
E

D
 T

O
P

 P
IP

E
C

T
V

   
~ 

C
A

B
LE

 T
E

LE
V

IS
IO

N
C

/W
   

~ 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 W

A
LK

D
B

   
 ~

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

D
E

   
 ~

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
D

I  
  ~

 D
R

O
P

 IN
LE

T
D

IP
   

~ 
D

U
C

T
IL

E
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E
D

N
R

   
~ 

D
E

P
T

.O
F

 N
A

T
U

R
A

L 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

D
N

R
M

S
 ~

 D
N

R
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 S

E
T

D
R

   
 ~

 D
R

IV
E

E
B

   
 ~

 E
LE

C
T

R
IC

 B
O

X
E

M
C

   
~ 

E
LE

C
T

R
IC

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
 C

O
R

P
.

E
P

   
 ~

 E
D

G
E

 O
F

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

F
C

   
 ~

 F
A

C
E

 O
F

 C
U

R
B

F
/C

   
~ 

F
E

N
C

E
 C

O
R

N
E

R
F

D
C

   
~ 

F
IR

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

F
F

E
   

~ 
F

IN
IS

H
E

D
 F

LO
O

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

F
H

   
 ~

 F
IR

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T

F
/L

   
~ 

F
E

N
C

E
 L

IN
E

F
O

C
M

  ~
 F

IB
R

E
 O

P
T

IC
 C

A
B

LE
 M

A
R

K
E

R
F

P
   

 ~
 F

E
N

C
E

 P
O

S
T

F
/P

   
~ 

F
LA

G
 P

O
LE

G
LM

P
  ~

 G
A

S
 L

IN
E

 M
A

R
K

E
R

 P
O

S
T

G
M

   
 ~

 G
A

S
 M

E
T

E
R

G
/P

   
~ 

G
A

T
E

 P
O

S
T

G
P

   
 ~

 G
U

Y
 P

O
LE

G
P

C
   

~ 
G

E
O

R
G

IA
 P

O
W

E
R

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
G

/R
   

~ 
G

U
A

R
D

 R
A

IL
G

V
   

 ~
 G

A
S

 V
A

LV
E

G
W

   
 ~

 G
U

Y
 W

IR
E

H
D

P
E

 ~
 H

IG
H

 D
E

N
S

IT
Y

 P
O

LY
E

T
H

Y
LE

N
E

H
/C

   
~ 

H
A

N
D

IC
A

P
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

H
V

P
/P

 ~
 H

IG
H

 V
O

LT
A

G
E

 P
O

W
E

R
 P

O
LE

H
/W

   
~ 

H
E

A
D

W
A

LL
IC

V
   

~ 
IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
V

A
LV

E
IN

V
   

~ 
IN

V
E

R
T

IP
F

   
~ 

IR
O

N
 P

IN
 F

O
U

N
D

IP
P

   
~ 

IR
O

N
 P

IN
 P

LA
C

E
D

 1
/2

" 
R

B
 W

/ C
A

P
IR

F
   

~ 
IN

T
E

R
M

E
D

IA
T

E
 R

E
G

IO
N

A
L 

F
LO

O
D

JB
   

 ~
 J

U
N

C
T

IO
N

 B
O

X

(L
) 

  ~
 C

U
R

V
E

 T
O

 T
H

E
 L

E
F

T
L/

A
   

~ 
LI

M
IT

 O
F

 A
C

C
E

S
S

Lc
   

 ~
 L

E
N

G
T

H
 O

F
 C

H
O

R
D

LL
L 

  ~
 L

A
N

D
 L

O
T

 L
IN

E
L/

P
   

~ 
LA

M
P

 P
O

S
T

/L
IG

H
T

 P
O

LE
L/

S
   

~ 
LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

 A
R

E
A

M
/B

   
~ 

M
A

IL
B

O
X

M
F

E
   

~ 
M

IN
IM

U
M

 F
LO

O
R

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
M

F
N

   
~ 

M
E

T
R

O
M

E
D

IA
 F

IB
R

E
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

M
H

   
 ~

 M
A

N
H

O
LE

M
N

P
   

~ 
M

A
G

 N
A

IL
 P

LA
C

E
D

M
W

   
 ~

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 W
E

LL
N

F
   

 ~
 N

A
IL

 F
O

U
N

D
N

/F
   

~ 
N

O
W

 O
R

 F
O

R
M

E
R

LY
O

C
S

   
~ 

O
U

T
LE

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
O

P
F

   
~ 

O
R

A
N

G
E

 P
IN

 F
LA

G
O

P
M

   
~ 

O
R

A
N

G
E

 P
A

IN
T

 M
A

R
K

O
T

   
 ~

 O
P

E
N

 T
O

P
 P

IP
E

P
   

  ~
 P

O
W

E
R

 L
IN

E
P

B
   

 ~
 P

LA
T

 B
O

O
K

P
/B

   
~ 

P
O

W
E

R
 B

O
X

P
G

   
 ~

 P
A

G
E

(S
)

P
IV

   
~ 

P
O

S
T

 IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
 V

A
LV

E
P

L 
   

~ 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 L

IN
E

P
O

B
   

~ 
P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

P
O

C
   

~ 
P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 C

O
M

M
E

N
C

IN
G

P
M

   
 ~

 P
O

W
E

R
 M

E
T

E
R

P
/P

   
~ 

P
O

W
E

R
 P

O
LE

P
S

   
 ~

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

A
C

E
(S

)
P

V
C

   
~ 

P
O

LY
V

IN
Y

LC
H

LO
R

ID
E

 P
IP

E
R

   
  ~

 R
A

D
IU

S
(R

) 
  ~

 C
U

R
V

E
 T

O
 T

H
E

 R
IG

H
T

R
B

   
 ~

 R
E

-B
A

R
R

C
P

   
~ 

R
E

IN
F

O
R

C
E

D
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 P

IP
E

R
P

F
   

~ 
R

E
D

 P
IN

 F
LA

G
R

P
M

   
~ 

R
E

D
 P

A
IN

T
 M

A
R

K
R

R
   

 ~
 R

A
IL

R
O

A
D

R
/T

   
~ 

R
E

T
A

IN
IN

G
R

/W
   

~ 
R

IG
H

T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

S
F

   
 ~

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 F
E

E
T

S
/P

   
~ 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
O

LE
S

R
   

 ~
 S

O
LI

D
 R

O
D

S
S

   
 ~

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

S
S

E
   

~ 
S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

 S
E

W
E

R
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

/W
   

~ 
S

ID
E

W
A

LK
T

   
  ~

 T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

 L
IN

E
T

/B
   

~ 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 S

IG
N

A
L 

B
O

X
T

/D
 ~

 T
R

E
N

C
H

 D
R

A
IN

T
B

M
   

~ 
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
T

/C
   

~ 
T

O
P

 O
F

 C
U

R
B

T
/P

   
~ 

T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

 P
O

LE
T

P
   

 ~
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 P

O
LE

T
R

A
N

S
   

~ 
T

R
A

N
S

M
IS

S
IO

N
T

/S
   

~ 
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 S

IG
N

A
L

T
S

I  
 ~

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 S
IG

N
T

W
   

 ~
 T

O
P

 O
F

 W
A

LL
T

/W
   

~ 
T

E
S

T
 W

E
LL

U
/G

   
~ 

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
V

B
   

 ~
 V

A
LV

E
 B

O
X

V
M

P
   

~ 
V

A
LV

E
 M

A
R

K
E

R
 P

O
S

T
W

   
  ~

 W
A

T
E

R
 L

IN
E

W
F

   
 ~

 W
E

T
LA

N
D

 F
LA

G
W

IF
 ~

 W
R

O
U

G
H

T
 IR

O
N

 F
E

N
C

E
W

M
   

 ~
 W

A
T

E
R

 M
E

T
E

R
W

V
   

 ~
 W

A
T

E
R

 V
A

LV
E

X
   

  ~
 C

O
R

N
E

R
Y

I  
  ~

 Y
A

R
D

 IN
LE

T
Y

P
F

   
~ 

Y
E

LL
O

W
 P

IN
 F

LA
G

Y
P

M
   

~ 
Y

E
LL

O
W

 P
A

IN
T

 M
A

R
K

S
Y

M
B

O
L
 
L
E

G
E

N
D

GA
S V

AL
VE

GA
S M

ET
ER

CO
NC

RE
TE

 M
ON

UM
EN

T F
OU

ND

FIR
E H

YD
RA

NT

GU
YP

OL
E

GU
YW

IR
E

CA
BL

E T
V B

OX

FIR
E D

EP
T C

ON
NE

CT
IO

N

BS
O/

AT
&T

/C
OM

M 
BO

X

GR
EA

SE
 TR

AP

GA
S L

IN
E M

AR
KE

R 
PO

ST

CL
EA

NO
UT

AIR
 C

ON
DI

TIO
NI

NG
 U

NI
T

BO
LL

AR
D

BS
O/

AT
&T

/C
OM

M 
MA

NH
OL

E

BA
CK

FL
OW

 PR
EV

EN
TO

R

GA
S M

AN
HO

LE

FIB
ER

 O
PT

IC
 C

AB
LE

 M
AR

KE
R

DR
OP

 IN
LE

T

GR
OU

ND
 LI

GH
T

CO
ND

UI
T

PO
WE

R 
PO

LE

LA
MP

 PO
ST

/LI
GH

T P
OL

E

IR
ON

 PI
N 

FO
UN

D
IR

RI
GA

TIO
N 

CO
NT

RO
L V

AL
VE

UT
ILI

TY
 PA

IN
T M

AR
K

PO
WE

R 
ME

TE
R

MO
NI

TO
RI

NG
 W

EL
L

SIG
N

TR
AF

FIC
 PO

LE
TR

AF
FIC

 SI
GN

AL

PO
WE

R/
EL

EC
 BO

X

TR
AF

FIC
 SI

GN
AL

 BO
X

TR
AN

SF
OR

ME
R

MA
IL 

BO
X/K

IO
SK

PO
WE

R 
MA

NH
OL

E

JU
NC

TIO
N 

BO
X

SA
NI

TA
RY

 SE
WE

R 
MA

NH
OL

E

TR
EE

PA
RK

IN
G 

ME
TE

R
PO

WE
R 

CO
ND

UI
T

HE
AD

WA
LL

WA
TE

R 
ME

TE
R

WA
TE

R 
VA

LV
E

WA
TE

R 
LIN

E M
AR

KE
R 

PO
ST

VA
LV

E M
AR

KE
R 

PO
ST

UT
ILI

TY
 BO

X
UT

ILI
TY

 M
AN

HO
LE

UT
ILI

TY
 PO

LE

CR
OS

S W
AL

K S
IG

NA
L P

OL
E

WA
TE

R 
MA

NH
OL

E

CA
BL

E T
V

FE
NC

E L
IN

E
PO

WE
R 

LIN
E

PO
WE

R 
& T

EL
EP

HO
NE

GA
S L

IN
E

TE
LE

PH
ON

E L
IN

E
U/

G 
PO

WE
R

U/
G 

TE
L

WA
TE

R 
LIN

E

SA
NI

TA
RY

 SE
WE

R 
LIN

E
ST

OR
M 

LIN
E

TR
AN

SM
ISS

IO
N 

LIN
E

O
W

N
ER

'S
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TE

W
E,

 T
H

E 
U

N
D

ER
SI

G
N

ED
 O

W
N

ER
(S

) 
AN

D
/O

R
 M

O
R

TG
AG

EE
(S

) 
O

F 
TH

E 
22

90
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 1
38

M
IN

O
R

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
, H

ER
EB

Y 
O

FF
ER

 T
O

 D
ED

IC
AT

E 
AN

D
/O

R
 R

ES
ER

VE
 F

O
R

 P
U

BL
IC

 U
SE

TH
E 

R
IG

H
TS

-O
F-

W
AY

, E
AS

EM
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
T.

O
W

N
ER

 
D

A
TE

SU
R

VE
YO

R
'S

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TE

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T 
IS

 T
R

U
E 

AN
D

 C
O

R
R

EC
T 

AN
D

 W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 F

R
O

M
AN

 A
C

TU
AL

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
O

F 
TH

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 B
Y 

M
E 

O
R

 U
N

D
ER

 M
Y 

SU
PE

R
VI

SI
O

N
; T

H
AT

 A
LL

M
O

N
U

M
EN

TS
 

AN
D

 
IN

FR
AS

TR
U

C
TU

R
E 

SH
O

W
N

 
H

ER
EO

N
 

AC
TU

AL
LY

 
EX

IS
T 

O
R

 
AR

E
M

AR
KE

D
 

AS
 

“F
U

TU
R

E”
; 

AN
D

 
TH

EI
R

 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

, 
SI

ZE
, 

TY
PE

 
AN

D
 

M
AT

ER
IA

L 
AR

E
C

O
R

R
EC

TL
Y 

SH
O

W
N

.

BY
:

 B
R

O
C

K
 J

. B
U

C
H

H
O

LZ
, R

LS
 #

32
10

D
AT

E
G

EO
R

G
IA

 R
EG

IS
TE

R
ED

 L
AN

D
 S

U
R

VE
YO

R

TH
E 

FI
EL

D
 D

AT
A 

U
PO

N
 W

H
IC

H
 T

H
IS

 M
AP

 O
R

 P
LA

T 
IS

 B
AS

ED
 H

AS
 A

 C
LO

SU
R

E 
O

F 
O

N
E

FO
O

T 
IN

 7
1,

73
8 

FE
ET

 A
N

D
 A

N
 A

N
G

U
LA

R
 E

R
R

O
R

 O
F 

02
" 

PE
R

 A
N

G
LE

 P
O

IN
T,

 A
N

D
 W

AS
LE

AS
T 

SQ
U

AR
ES

 A
D

JU
ST

ED
.

TR
AC

T 
1 

- T
H

IS
 M

AP
 O

R
 P

LA
T 

H
AS

 B
EE

N
 C

AL
C

U
LA

TE
D

 F
O

R
 C

LO
SU

R
E 

AN
D

 IS
 F

O
U

N
D

 T
O

BE
 A

C
C

U
R

AT
E 

W
IT

H
IN

 O
N

E 
FO

O
T 

IN
 1

66
,8

21
 F

EE
T.

TR
AC

T 
2 

- T
H

IS
 M

AP
 O

R
 P

LA
T 

H
AS

 B
EE

N
 C

AL
C

U
LA

TE
D

 F
O

R
 C

LO
SU

R
E 

AN
D

 IS
 F

O
U

N
D

 T
O

BE
 A

C
C

U
R

AT
E 

W
IT

H
IN

 O
N

E 
FO

O
T 

IN
 1

99
,0

55
 F

EE
T.

A 
LE

IC
A 

TS
06

+ 
TO

TA
L 

ST
AT

IO
N

 W
AS

 U
SE

D
 T

O
 O

BT
AI

N
 T

H
E 

LI
N

EA
R

 A
N

D
 A

N
G

U
LA

R
M

EA
SU

R
EM

EN
TS

 U
SE

D
 IN

 T
H

E 
PR

EP
AR

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
T.

EX
PL

AN
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

PA
IN

T 
M

AR
KI

N
G

 A
N

D
/O

R
 P

IN
 F

LA
G

S 
FO

U
N

D
, 

M
AR

KE
D

 B
Y 

U
TI

LI
TY

LO
C

AT
O

R
S,

 U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S 
O

R
 B

Y 
O

TH
ER

S.

1.
BP

M
 (B

LU
E 

PA
IN

T 
M

AR
K)

 O
R

 B
PF

 (B
LU

E 
PI

N
 F

LA
G

) W
AT

ER
 L

IN
E.

2.
G

PM
 (G

R
EE

N
 P

AI
N

T 
M

AR
K)

 O
R

 G
PF

 (G
R

EE
N

 P
IN

 F
LA

G
): 

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

 L
IN

E.
3.

O
PM

 
(O

R
AN

G
E 

PA
IN

T 
M

AR
K)

 
O

R
 

O
PF

 
(O

R
AN

G
E 

PI
N

 
FL

AG
): 

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
AT

IO
N

, A
LA

R
M

, S
IG

N
AL

 L
IN

ES
, C

AB
LE

S 
O

R
 C

O
N

D
U

IT
 L

IN
ES

.
4.

PP
M

 (
PU

R
PL

E 
PA

IN
T 

M
AR

K)
 O

R
 P

PF
 (

PU
R

PL
E 

PI
N

 F
LA

G
): 

IR
R

IG
AT

IO
N

 O
R

 S
LU

R
R

Y
LI

N
ES

.
5.

R
PM

 (
R

ED
 P

AI
N

T 
M

AR
K)

 O
R

 R
PF

 (
R

ED
 P

IN
 F

LA
G

): 
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 P
O

W
ER

LI
N

ES
 O

R
 C

AB
LE

S.
6.

YP
M

 (Y
EL

LO
W

 P
AI

N
T 

M
AR

K)
 O

R
 Y

PF
 (Y

EL
LO

W
 P

IN
 F

LA
G

): 
G

AS
 L

IN
E.

W
AT

TS
 

& 
BR

O
W

N
IN

G
 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S,

 
IN

C
. 

H
AS

 
EX

AM
IN

ED
 

TH
E 

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 

FL
O

O
D

IN
SU

R
AN

C
E 

PR
O

G
R

AM
 

(N
FI

P)
 

FL
O

O
D

 
IN

SU
R

AN
C

E 
R

AT
E 

M
AP

 
(F

IR
M

) 
AN

D
 

BY
G

R
AP

H
IC

AL
LY

 P
LO

TT
IN

G
 T

H
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
SU

BJ
EC

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
N

TO
 F

AY
ET

TE
C

O
U

N
TY

 
FI

R
M

 
M

AP
 

N
U

M
BE

R
 

13
11

3C
00

37
E 

D
AT

ED
 

09
/2

6/
20

08
 

TH
E 

R
EF

ER
EN

C
ED

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 IS

 L
O

C
AT

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
ZO

N
E 

LI
ST

ED
 B

EL
O

W
:

ZO
N

E 
X 

(U
N

SH
AD

ED
): 

AR
EA

S 
D

ET
ER

M
IN

ED
 T

O
 B

E 
O

U
TS

ID
E 

TH
E 

0.
2%

 A
N

N
U

AL
 C

H
AN

C
E

FL
O

O
D

PL
AI

N
.

TH
E 

FL
O

O
D

 L
IN

E,
 IF

 S
H

O
W

N
, I

S 
AP

PR
O

XI
M

AT
E 

AN
D

 T
H

E 
AC

TU
AL

 L
IM

IT
S 

O
F 

FL
O

O
D

 L
IN

E
BA

SE
D

 O
N

 P
U

BL
IS

H
ED

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S 
M

AY
 E

XT
EN

D
 B

EY
O

N
D

 T
H

O
SE

 S
H

O
W

N
 H

ER
EO

N
.

N
O

TE
: 

20
13

 F
AY

ET
TE

 C
O

U
N

TY
 D

EW
BE

R
R

Y 
FL

O
O

D
 S

TU
D

Y 
D

O
ES

 I
N

D
IC

AT
E 

TH
AT

 A
PO

R
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TR
AC

T 
TW

O
 L

IE
S 

W
IT

H
IN

 A
N

 A
R

EA
 O

F 
FL

O
O

D
 H

AZ
AR

D
 A

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
SU

R
VE

Y.
 

TH
E 

LI
M

IT
S 

O
F 

D
EW

BE
R

R
Y 

FO
O

D
 

LI
N

ES
 

W
ER

E 
FU

R
N

IS
H

ED
 

BY
 

FA
YE

TT
E

C
O

U
N

TY
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T.

R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

1.
 P

LA
T:

 A
LT

A/
N

SP
S 

LA
N

D
 T

IT
LE

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
FO

R
 C

H
IL

D
R

ES
S 

KL
EI

N
 A

N
D

 F
IR

ST
 A

M
ER

IC
AN

TI
TL

E 
IN

SU
R

AN
C

E 
C

O
M

PA
N

Y,
 L

O
C

AT
ED

 I
N

 L
AN

D
 L

O
T 

19
8,

 1
3T

H
 D

IS
TR

IC
T,

 F
AY

ET
TE

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

EO
R

G
IA

, D
AT

ED
 F

EB
R

U
AR

Y 
7,

 2
02

1,
 L

AS
T 

R
EV

IS
ED

 M
AR

C
H

 1
0,

 2
02

1.

2.
 C

AM
PB

EL
L 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L,
 IN

C
 S

IT
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 F
O

R
 W

AT
ER

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
U

N
IT

ED
 S

TA
TE

S
AN

D
 S

TA
TE

 W
AT

ER
S.

 D
AT

ED
 M

AY
 5

, 2
02

1.

3.
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

 F
O

R
 H

W
Y 

13
8-

SE
LF

 S
TO

R
AG

E,
 L

O
C

AT
ED

 I
N

 L
AN

D
 L

O
T 

19
8,

 1
3,

 D
IS

TR
IC

T,
FA

YE
TT

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA
, P

R
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y 

AT
W

EL
L,

 D
AT

ED
 A

U
G

U
ST

 2
4,

 2
02

1.

4.
 

AG
EN

D
A 

O
F 

AC
TI

O
N

S 
FO

R
 

TH
E 

FA
YE

TT
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
 

BO
AR

D
 

O
F 

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ER
S

M
EE

TI
N

G
, H

EL
D

 M
AY

 2
7,

 2
02

1,
 A

T 
6:

30
 P

M
,  

C
O

N
SI

D
ER

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
PE

TI
TI

O
N

 N
O

.1
30

5-
2.

LI
N

E 
C

H
AR

T

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
A

R
K

:
BE

N
C

H
-T

IE
 N

AI
L 

IN
 P

O
W

ER
 P

O
LE

 O
N

 T
H

E 
N

O
R

TH
 S

ID
E 

O
F 

G
EO

R
G

IA
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 1
38

AN
D

 N
EA

R
 T

H
E 

SO
U

TH
 W

ES
TE

R
LY

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 O
F 

BE
TH

SA
ID

A 
D

R
IV

E.

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 9
36

.0
85

PR
O

JE
C

T 
B

EN
C

H
M

A
R

K
: G

A
M

R
LE

IC
A 

SM
AR

T 
N

ET
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
ST

AT
IO

N
 ID

 0
84

7

EL
EV

.=
 9

34
.0

0 
' (

N
AV

D
 8

8)

N
O

TE
: C

O
N

TO
U

R
 IN

TE
R

VA
L 

IS
 T

W
O

 (2
) F

EE
T.

O
W

N
ER

 / 
D

EV
EL

O
PE

R
C

K 
13

8,
 L

LC
30

0 
G

AL
LE

R
IA

 P
AR

KW
AY

, S
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

20
0

AT
LA

N
TA

, G
A 

30
33

9
(7

70
) 8

59
-1

22
3

SU
R

VE
YO

R
W

AT
TS

 &
 B

R
O

W
N

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

S,
 IN

C
13

49
 O

LD
 4

1 
H

W
Y 

N
W

 S
U

IT
E 

22
5

M
AR

IE
TT

A,
 G

A 
30

06
0-

79
05

(6
78

) 3
24

-6
19

2

SU
R

VE
YO

R
'S

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N

AS
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 B
Y 

SU
BS

EC
TI

O
N

 (
D

) 
O

F 
O

.C
.G

.A
. 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

5-
6-

67
, 

TH
IS

 P
LA

T 
H

AS
 B

EE
N

PR
EP

AR
ED

 
BY

 
A 

LA
N

D
 

SU
R

VE
YO

R
 

AN
D

 
AP

PR
O

VE
D

 
BY

 
AL

L 
AP

PL
IC

AB
LE

 
LO

C
AL

JU
R

IS
D

IC
TI

O
N

S 
FO

R
 

R
EC

O
R

D
IN

G
 

AS
 

EV
ID

EN
C

ED
 

BY
 

AP
PR

O
VA

L 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
ES

,
SI

G
N

AT
U

R
ES

, S
TA

M
PS

, O
R

 S
TA

TE
M

EN
TS

 H
ER

EO
N

. S
U

C
H

 A
PP

R
O

VA
LS

 O
R

 A
FF

IR
M

AT
IO

N
S

SH
O

U
LD

 B
E 

C
O

N
FI

R
M

ED
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
AP

PR
O

PR
IA

TE
 G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

TA
L 

BO
D

IE
S 

BY
 A

N
Y

PU
R

C
H

AS
ER

 
O

R
 

U
SE

R
 

O
F 

TH
IS

 
PL

AT
 

AS
 

TO
 

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 

U
SE

 
O

F 
AN

Y 
PA

R
C

EL
.

FU
R

TH
ER

M
O

R
E,

 
TH

E 
U

N
D

ER
SI

G
N

ED
 

LA
N

D
 

SU
R

VE
YO

R
 

C
ER

TI
FI

ES
 

TH
AT

 
TH

IS
 

PL
AT

C
O

M
PL

IE
S 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 T

EC
H

N
IC

AL
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
S 

FO
R

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 S
U

R
VE

YS
 I

N
G

EO
R

G
IA

 A
S 

SE
T 

FO
R

TH
 IN

 T
H

E 
R

U
LE

S 
AN

D
 R

EG
U

LA
TI

O
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
G

EO
R

G
IA

 B
O

AR
D

 O
F

R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

S 
AN

D
 L

AN
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

S 
AN

D
 A

S 
SE

T
FO

R
TH

 IN
 O

.C
.G

.A
. S

EC
TI

O
N

 1
5-

6-
67

.

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  0

2/
07

/2
02

1
BR

O
C

K 
J.

 B
U

C
H

H
O

LZ
D

AT
E

G
EO

R
G

IA
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

ED
 L

AN
D

 S
U

R
VE

YO
R

 N
U

M
BE

R
 3

21
0

04
/0

7/
20

21

SU
R

VE
YO

R
S 

N
O

TE
S:

1.
 T

H
E 

D
IS

TA
N

C
ES

 S
H

O
W

N
 H

ER
EO

N
 A

R
E 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 D
IS

TA
N

C
ES

.

2.
 T

H
IS

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
IS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

 T
H

E 
EX

C
LU

SI
VE

 U
SE

 O
F 

TH
E 

EN
TI

TI
ES

 N
AM

ED
 IN

 T
H

E
C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 H

ER
EO

N
. 

SA
ID

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T 

EX
TE

N
D

 T
O

 A
N

Y 
U

N
N

AM
ED

EN
TI

TI
ES

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

AN
 E

XP
R

ES
SE

D
 R

EC
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 B
Y 

TH
E 

SU
R

VE
YO

R
 N

AM
IN

G
 S

AI
D

EN
TI

TI
ES

.

3.
 A

BO
VE

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TY

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

S 
W

ER
E 

O
BT

AI
N

ED
 F

R
O

M
 F

IE
LD

 O
BS

ER
VA

TI
O

N
S.

W
AT

TS
 

& 
BR

O
W

N
IN

G
 

H
AS

 
N

O
T 

R
ES

EA
R

C
H

ED
 

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
U

TI
LI

TY
 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
S.

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 S

H
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

 R
EG

AR
D

IN
G

 T
H

E 
EX

IS
TE

N
C

E,
 S

IZ
E,

 T
YP

E 
AN

D
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
O

F 
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 IS
 B

AS
ED

 O
N

 M
AR

KI
N

G
S 

IN
 T

H
E 

FI
EL

D
 A

N
D

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
FU

R
N

IS
H

ED
 B

Y 
O

TH
ER

S 
AN

D
 W

AT
TS

 &
 B

R
O

W
N

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

S 
IS

 U
N

AB
LE

 T
O

 C
ER

TI
FY

TO
 T

H
E 

AC
C

U
R

AC
Y 

O
R

 C
O

M
PL

ET
EN

ES
S 

O
F 

TH
IS

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
. I

N
D

IC
AT

ED
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
S

SH
O

U
LD

 B
E 

C
O

N
FI

R
M

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
FI

EL
D

 W
IT

H
 U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S 

PR
IO

R
 T

O
 P

R
O

C
EE

D
IN

G
W

IT
H

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

, D
ES

IG
N

 O
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

.

4.
 A

N
Y 

D
EP

IC
TI

O
N

 O
F 

G
R

O
U

N
D

W
AT

ER
 F

EA
TU

R
ES

 (R
IV

ER
S,

 S
TR

EA
M

S,
 C

R
EE

KS
, S

PR
IN

G
S,

D
IT

C
H

ES
, 

PO
N

D
S,

 L
AK

ES
), 

N
AT

U
R

AL
 O

R
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E,
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

U
R

VE
Y 

AR
E

M
ER

EL
Y 

O
BS

ER
VA

TI
O

N
S 

AT
 T

H
E 

TI
M

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
SU

R
VE

Y 
AN

D
 N

O
T 

A 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

AS
 T

O
TH

E 
EX

IS
TE

N
C

E 
O

R
 N

O
N

-E
XI

ST
EN

C
E 

O
F 

AN
Y 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

. 
W

AT
TS

 &
BR

O
W

N
IN

G
 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S,

 
IN

C
. 

SU
R

VE
Y 

PE
R

SO
N

N
EL

 
AR

E 
N

O
T 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

S.
 W

AT
TS

 &
 B

R
O

W
N

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

S,
 IN

C
. O

FF
ER

S 
N

O
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 A

S
TO

 
EX

IS
TE

N
C

E 
O

R
 

N
O

N
EX

IS
TE

N
C

E 
O

F 
AN

Y 
G

R
O

U
N

D
W

AT
ER

 
FE

AT
U

R
E 

O
R

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

LL
Y 

SE
N

SI
TI

VE
 A

R
EA

S 
O

N
 O

R
 N

EA
R

 T
H

E 
SU

BJ
EC

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 A
S 

M
AY

 B
E

D
EF

IN
ED

 B
Y 

FE
D

ER
AL

, 
ST

AT
E 

O
R

 L
O

C
AL

 G
O

VE
R

N
M

EN
TA

L 
R

EG
U

LA
TI

O
N

S.
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
PL

AN
N

IN
G

 
O

R
 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

, 
AN

 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 

SH
O

U
LD

 
BE

C
O

N
SU

LT
ED

 T
O

 D
ET

ER
M

IN
E 

H
O

W
 T

H
E 

SU
BJ

EC
T 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 M

AY
, 

O
R

 M
AY

 N
O

T,
 B

E
AF

FE
C

TE
D

 B
Y 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
IS

SU
ES

.

5.
 B

EA
R

IN
G

 B
AS

IS
: G

R
ID

 N
O

R
TH

 W
AS

 D
ET

ER
M

IN
ED

 B
Y 

M
U

LT
IP

LE
 R

TK
 O

BS
ER

VA
TI

O
N

S 
O

N
SU

R
VE

Y 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PO

IN
TS

 U
TI

LI
ZI

N
G

 A
 L

EI
C

A 
G

PS
 G

S4
 R

O
VE

R
 C

O
N

N
EC

TE
D

 T
O

 T
H

E
LE

IC
A 

SM
AR

TN
ET

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

N
ET

W
O

R
K.

6.
 A

T 
TH

E 
TI

M
E 

O
F 

TH
IS

 S
U

R
VE

Y,
 T

H
ER

E 
W

AS
 N

O
 O

BS
ER

VA
BL

E 
EV

ID
EN

C
E 

O
F 

H
U

M
AN

BU
R

IA
LS

 O
R

 C
EM

ET
ER

IE
S.

7.
 A

LL
 F

IE
LD

 M
EA

SU
R

EM
EN

TS
 M

AT
C

H
ED

 R
EC

O
R

D
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
PR

EC
IS

IO
N

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 O

F 
AL

TA
/N

SP
S 

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

SH
O

W
N

.

8.
 T

H
IS

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
W

AS
 P

R
EP

AR
ED

 I
N

 C
O

N
FO

R
M

IT
Y 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

TE
C

H
N

IC
AL

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

S
FO

R
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 S

U
R

VE
YS

 IN
 G

EO
R

G
IA

 A
S 

SE
T 

FO
R

TH
 IN

 C
H

AP
TE

R
 1

80
-7

 O
F 

TH
E 

R
U

LE
S

O
F 

TH
E 

G
EO

R
G

IA
 B

O
AR

D
 O

F 
R

EG
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

 F
O

R
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

AN
D

 L
AN

D
SU

R
VE

YO
R

S 
AN

D
 A

S 
SE

T 
FO

R
TH

 IN
 T

H
E 

G
EO

R
G

IA
 P

LA
T 

AC
T 

O
.C

.G
.A

. 1
5-

6-
67

.

9.
 T

H
E 

D
EE

D
S 

O
F 

AD
JO

IN
IN

G
 

PR
O

PE
R

TI
ES

 
H

AV
E 

N
O

T 
BE

EN
 

FU
R

N
IS

H
ED

 
TO

 
TH

E
SU

R
VE

YO
R

 F
O

R
 R

EV
IE

W
 A

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 IN
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 4
 O

F 
TH

E 
20

21
 A

LT
A/

N
SP

S 
M

IN
IM

U
M

ST
AN

D
AR

D
 D

ET
AI

L 
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

, 
EF

FE
C

TI
VE

 F
EB

R
U

AR
Y 

23
, 

20
21

. 
TH

E 
AD

JO
IN

IN
G

O
W

N
ER

SH
IP

 A
N

D
 D

EE
D

 R
EF

ER
EN

C
ES

 S
H

O
W

N
 H

ER
EO

N
 W

ER
E 

R
ES

EA
R

C
H

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E
SU

R
VE

YO
R

.

10
. T

H
E 

ZO
N

IN
G

 C
LA

SS
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 B

U
LK

 R
ES

TR
IC

TI
O

N
S 

H
AV

E 
 B

EE
N

 F
U

R
N

IS
H

ED
 T

O
TH

E 
SU

R
VE

YO
R

 F
O

R
 R

EV
IE

W
 P

ER
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
IT

EM
 3

. 
AN

Y 
G

R
AP

H
IC

 D
EP

IC
TI

O
N

 O
F

SE
TB

AC
K 

LI
N

ES
 

AN
D

 
AN

Y 
O

TH
ER

 
M

AT
TE

R
S 

O
F 

ZO
N

IN
G

 
AR

E 
TH

E 
SU

R
VE

YO
R

'S
IN

TE
R

PR
ET

AT
IO

N
 

O
F 

TH
E 

ZO
N

IN
G

 I
N

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 
R

ES
EA

R
C

H
ED

 
BY

 T
H

IS
 F

IR
M

 
AN

D
TH

O
SE

 F
U

R
N

IS
H

ED
 B

Y 
O

TH
ER

S.
 T

H
E 

SU
R

VE
YO

R
 O

FF
ER

S 
N

O
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 A

S 
TO

 T
H

E
ZO

N
IN

G
 O

F 
TH

E 
SU

BJ
EC

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
R

 C
O

M
PL

IA
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

ZO
N

IN
G

 R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S

FO
R

 T
H

E 
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
ES

 O
R

 B
U

SI
N

ES
SE

S 
O

N
 T

H
E 

SU
BJ

EC
T 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
.

11
. 

FA
YE

TT
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
 

D
O

ES
 

N
O

T 
AC

C
EP

T 
TH

E 
O

W
N

ER
SH

IP
, 

M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

C
E 

O
R

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
O

R
 O

VE
R

AL
L 

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

, O
R

 T
H

E
LA

C
K 

O
F 

O
N

E,
 IN

D
IC

AT
ED

 B
Y 

TH
IS

 P
LA

T.

12
. A

C
C

O
R

D
IN

G
 T

O
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
IT

EM
 1

, T
H

ER
E 

AR
E 

N
O

 K
N

O
W

N
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 E
AS

EM
EN

TS
AS

SO
C

IA
TE

D
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

.

13
.  

EA
C

H
 B

U
IL

D
AB

LE
 L

O
T 

H
AS

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 C
O

N
TI

G
U

O
U

S 
AR

EA
 O

F 
_0

.3
_ 

AC
R

ES
 T

H
AT

 IS
FR

EE
 A

N
D

 C
LE

AR
 O

F 
ZO

N
IN

G
 B

U
FF

ER
S 

AN
D

 S
ET

BA
C

KS
, 

W
AT

ER
SH

ED
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
BU

FF
ER

S 
AN

D
 S

ET
BA

C
KS

, J
U

R
IS

D
IC

TI
O

N
AL

 W
ET

LA
N

D
S,

 A
N

D
 E

AS
EM

EN
TS

 O
F 

AN
Y 

KI
N

D
.

14
. L

O
TS

 W
IL

L 
BE

 S
ER

VI
C

ED
 B

Y 
SE

PT
IC

 S
YS

TE
M

S.

15
. 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
W

IL
L 

BE
 S

ER
EV

ED
 B

Y 
FA

YE
TT

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

 W
AT

ER
 S

YS
TE

M
S,

 A
N

D
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 W
AT

ER
 L

IN
ES

 W
IL

L 
BE

 IN
ST

AL
LE

D
 A

T 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

S 
EX

PE
N

SE
.

16
. T

H
ER

E 
AR

E 
N

O
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
ES

 O
R

 F
EA

TU
R

ES
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
.

ZO
N

IN
G

 IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

:

SO
U

R
C

E:
 F

AY
ET

TE
 C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 - 

C
O

D
E 

O
F 

O
R

D
IN

AN
C

ES
, C

H
AP

TE
R

 1
10

 - 
ZO

N
IN

G
,

SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

10
-1

37
. R

-4
0,

 S
IN

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y 

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

.
ht

tp
s:

//l
ib

ra
ry

.m
un

ic
od

e.
co

m
/g

a/
fa

ye
tte

_c
ou

nt
y/

co
de

s/
co

de
_o

f_
or

di
na

nc
es

?n
od

eI
d=

PT
IIC

O
C

O
_C

H
11

0Z
O

ZO
N

IN
G

 C
LA

SS
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

:
R

-4
0 

(S
IN

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y 

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

)
ZO

N
IN

G
 P

ET
IT

IO
N

 -1
30

5-
21

 (R
-4

0 
TO

 C
-H

)
SE

TB
AC

K 
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

:
FR

O
N

T:
60

 F
EE

T 
(A

R
TE

R
IA

L)
SI

D
E:

15
 F

EE
T

R
EA

R
: 

30
 F

EE
T

H
EI

G
H

T 
R

ES
TR

IC
TI

O
N

S:
35

 F
EE

T
FL

O
O

R
 S

PA
C

E 
R

ES
TR

IC
TI

O
N

S:
1,

50
0 

SQ
U

AR
E 

FE
ET

LO
T 

SI
ZE

: 
43

,5
60

 S
Q

U
AR

E 
FE

ET
 (1

 A
C

R
E)

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 L

IN
E:

15
0 

FE
ET

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
SO

U
R

C
E:

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

 H
W

Y 
13

8-
SE

LF
 S

TO
R

AG
E,

 L
O

C
AT

ED
 I

N
 L

AN
D

 L
O

T 
19

8,
 1

3,
D

IS
TR

IC
T,

 F
AY

ET
TE

 C
O

U
N

TY
, G

EO
R

G
IA

, P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y 
AT

W
EL

L,
 D

AT
ED

 A
U

G
U

ST
 2

4,
 2

02
1.

ZO
N

IN
G

 C
LA

SS
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

:
C

-H
 (H

IG
H

W
AY

 C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L)

ZO
N

IN
G

 P
ET

IT
IO

N
 -1

30
5-

21
 (R

-4
0 

TO
 C

-H
)

O
VE

R
LA

Y 
D

IS
TR

IC
T:

SR
 1

38
 &

 N
O

R
TH

 S
R

 3
14

SE
TB

AC
K 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
:

FR
O

N
T:

10
0 

FE
ET

 (P
ER

 O
VE

R
LA

Y)
SI

D
E:

15
 F

EE
T

R
EA

R
: 

15
 F

EE
T

H
EI

G
H

T 
R

ES
TR

IC
TI

O
N

S:
35

 F
EE

T
FL

O
O

R
 S

PA
C

E 
R

ES
TR

IC
TI

O
N

S:
N

/A
LO

T 
SI

ZE
:

43
,5

60
 S

Q
U

AR
E 

FE
ET

 (1
 A

C
R

E)
LO

T 
W

ID
TH

 A
T 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 L

IN
E:

12
5 

FE
ET

BU
FF

ER
:

50
 F

EE
T 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T 
TO

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 O
R

 A
-R

 Z
O

N
IN

G
D

IS
TR

IC
TS

.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 #

  1

TH
IS

 P
LA

T 
SU

PE
R

SE
D

ES
 T

H
E 

PL
AT

 R
EC

O
R

D
ED

 IN
 P

LA
T 

BO
O

K 
10

1,
 P

AG
E 

68
 O

F 
FA

YE
TT

E
C

O
U

N
TY

 R
EC

O
R

D
S,

 G
EO

R
G

IA
.

TH
E 

PU
R

PO
SE

 F
O

R
 T

H
ES

E 
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
AR

E:

·
TO

 A
D

JU
ST

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y 
LI

N
ES

 B
ET

W
EE

N
 T

R
AC

TS
 1

 A
N

D
 2

.

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
AP

PR
O

VE
D

 B
Y:

  
D

AT
E

FA
YE

TT
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
 Z

O
N

IN
G

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
O

R

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 B

Y:
  

D
AT

E
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

H
EA

LT
H

,

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 B

Y:
  

D
AT

E
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

H
EA

LT
H

,

O
W

N
ER

'S
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TE

I T
H

E 
U

N
D

ER
SI

G
N

ED
, C

ER
TI

FY
 T

H
A

T 
A

S 
TH

E 
LE

G
A

L 
O

W
N

ER
/O

W
N

ER
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

SU
B

JE
C

T
PR

O
PE

R
TY

/P
R

O
PE

R
TI

ES
, I

 H
ER

EB
Y 

A
U

TH
O

R
IZ

E 
TH

E 
SU

B
M

IT
TA

L 
O

F 
TH

IS
 R

EV
IS

ED
 F

IN
A

L
PL

A
T 

FO
R

 M
Y/

O
U

R
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
/P

R
O

PE
R

TI
ES

.

C
K

13
8,

 L
LC

, A
 G

EO
R

G
IA

 L
IM

IT
ED

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

B
Y:

 C
H

IL
D

R
ES

S 
K

LE
IN

 P
R

O
PE

R
TI

ES
, I

N
C

., 
IT

S 
M

A
N

A
G

ER

BY
: 

C
H

R
IS

TO
PH

ER
 D

. P
O

H
O

LE
K

 
D

A
TE

LE
VE

L 
III

 S
O

IL
 S

U
R

VE
Y

I, 
(N

A
M

E)
 

D
O

 
H

ER
EB

Y 
C

ER
TI

FY
 

TH
A

T 
TH

E 
LE

VE
L 

III
 S

O
IL

 
SU

R
VE

Y 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
PR

O
VI

D
ED

 O
N

 T
H

E 
SO

IL
 M

A
P 

W
A

S 
PE

R
FO

R
M

ED
 B

Y 
(C

O
M

PA
N

Y 
N

A
M

E)
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

W
IT

H
 

TH
E 

PR
O

C
ED

U
R

ES
 

SP
EC

IF
IE

D
 

IN
 

TH
E 

G
EO

R
G

IA
 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
H

U
M

A
N

R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
' C

U
R

R
EN

T 
M

A
N

U
A

L 
FO

R
 O

N
-S

IT
E 

SE
W

A
G

E 
M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
SY

ST
EM

S.

SI
G

N
A

TU
R

E 
O

F 
SO

IL
 C

LA
SS

IF
IE

R
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

A
D

D
R

ES
S 

&
 T

EL
EP

H
O

N
E 

M
A

XI
S 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
, L

LD
50

1 
H

IC
K

O
R

Y 
R

ID
G

E 
TR

A
IL

, S
U

IT
E 

11
0

W
O

O
D

ST
O

C
K

, G
A

 3
01

88
PH

O
N

E:
 7

70
-6

94
-6

17
8

B
A

R
R

Y 
D

. H
O

LB
ER

T
G

EO
R

G
IA

 D
H

R
 S

O
IL

 C
LA

SS
IF

IE
R

  N
O

. 2
58

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 3/4"OT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1"OT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%237

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%141

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%229

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%236

AutoCAD SHX Text
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%77

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB 1.57'SE (ON LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F/C 0.6'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°59'52"W11.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A=65.77'(R) N89°39'41"ELc=65.77' R=2814.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%236

AutoCAD SHX Text
POBTRACT 1 TRACT 1 IPF 1/2"RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF 1/2"RB 0.88'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODPILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F HEDMARK II LLC DB5000/PG324

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F WYLENE CARPENTER DB5024/PG504

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DOYLE M.HAMBY ESTATE (NO DEED FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F JERRY L.IRVING PB3/PG161

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F JERRY L.IRVING PB3/PG161

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F JERRY L.IRVING & HELEN H.IRVING DB1092/PG733 PB3/PG161

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F JERRY L.IRVING & HELEN H.IRVING DB1318/PG467

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DON BRENT,LLC DB4648/PG542

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DAVID M.TRAVIS DB4036/PG641

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F HSANNI  HENRY DB4978/PG566

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F THOMAS H.JONES ESTATE (NO DEED FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
198

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
199

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
188

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
187

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
198

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
188

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL OF DITCH IS PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BM BENCHTIE NAIL IN P/P ELEV-936.09' (NAVD88)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POC

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND LOT LINE APPROX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT DB1900/PG113

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMNANTS OF OLD B/W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMNANTS OF OLD B/W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
L29

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
POBTRACT 2 TRACT 2 IPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: C-H (HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: R-40 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARENT TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARENT TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARENT TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARENT TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDES TRACTS 1 & 2 PARENT PARCEL ID-1306023

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL OF DITCH IS PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMNANTS OF OLD B/W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
173.61' S10°01'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND A FLAGS A1-A15 REF ITEM #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
START STREAM 1 INTERMITTENT PERENNIAL STREAM REF ITEM #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-WATERS STORMWATER ONLY REF ITEM #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S82°58'20"E160.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°24'53"W465.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.00' N71°19'58"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
602.29' S00°01'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N17°28'57"E369.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N07°00'39"W582.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°59'31"E322.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
173.61' S10°01'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
259.01' S41°54'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' L/S BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' L/S BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' L/S BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°32'14"W393.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DEWBERRY FLOOD STUDY (FROM OTHERS) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DEWBERRY FLOOD STUDY  (FROM OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' WATERSHED PROTECTION BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' WATERSHED PROTECTION SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%17640'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
398.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N33%%17614'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%17640'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
408.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
557.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%17601'47"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE REVISION #1 NOTE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'PARKING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' L/S BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'ZONING BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'ZONING BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'FRONT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'SIDE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION POND (APPROXIMATE) 100 YR VOL: 56,985 CF 100 YR ELEV: 928.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DETENTION POND PER PLAN (ELEV=931)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=933.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=933.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=933.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=933.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=933.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.   DATE    BY           DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE SURVEYED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE UPDATED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATE DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD BOOK #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLDER NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COGO FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISC FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY/LL/D/S:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATTS & BROWNING ENGINEERS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERS & LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WWW.WBENGR.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:  (770) 694-6870

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE:(678) 324-6192

AutoCAD SHX Text
1349 OLD 41 HWY NW STE 225

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARIETTA, GEORGIA 30060

AutoCAD SHX Text
LSF000429 - PEF000714

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ë

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ð

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%121

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%77

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%141

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%59

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%46

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%236

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
æ

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
(

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ã

AutoCAD SHX Text
BSOMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ì

AutoCAD SHX Text
Â

AutoCAD SHX Text
GMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
G/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
[

AutoCAD SHX Text
CON

AutoCAD SHX Text
(

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/P

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%120

AutoCAD SHX Text
L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%45

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
PNTMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%43

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%232

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
b

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ê

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
é

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ç

AutoCAD SHX Text
M/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
í

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%192

AutoCAD SHX Text
PMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%42

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%198

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PKMTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWRCON

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
å

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%130

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WLMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
UM

AutoCAD SHX Text
¿

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
XWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ä

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
þ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/07/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/10/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
GNL

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/24/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
210111

AutoCAD SHX Text
210111

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
210111 MINOR SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAYETTE/198/13

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N76%%D52'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S80%%D10'01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35%%D03'27"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11%%D21'43"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00%%D27'24"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S47%%D37'26"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S38%%D12'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S57%%D08'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S67%%D02'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S64%%D59'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86%%D02'36"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
S72%%D26'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21%%D55'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S74%%D20'20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07%%D14'26"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
S43%%D20'34"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
S49%%D40'26"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
S68%%D28'48"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
S48%%D14'08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
S37%%D21'16"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08%%D48'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
S71%%D21'46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89%%D16'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77%%D40'37"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87%%D40'06"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
S66%%D26'57"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
S82%%D01'59"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
S72%%D29'08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L29

AutoCAD SHX Text
S50%%D30'08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID NORTH~WEST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEICA SMARTNET REF STATION 0847

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
314

AutoCAD SHX Text
314

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETHSAIDA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTBRIDGE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%67

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%67

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/07/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISE LOT CONFIGURATION. REMOVE BUILDING, ADD ZONING. ADD WETLANDS BY OTHERS. REVISE ZONING BUFFER AND SETBACKS. ADDRESS COUNTY COMMENTS. ADD NOTES TO SURVEY. SEE REVISION NOTE #1. ADDRESS COUNTY COMMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/16/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
DCJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/19/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/24/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
BJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/24/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
BJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/08/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
BJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/24/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/21/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PB101/PG168 FOR ORIGINAL SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAT REVISION SUPERCEDES THAT PLAT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 101, PAGE 168

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PB101/PG168 FOR ORIGINAL SIGNATURE











 pg. 1 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

PETITION NO: 1372-25-A-B 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: A. Rezone Parcel No.1306-011 (45.412 acres) from R-40 (Single-Family 

Residential) to  A-R (Agriculture-Residential); this parcel is labelled as 
Tract I in the attached survey. 

 
B. Rezone Parcel No.1306-117 (4.738 acres) from R-40 (Single-Family 
Residential) to  A-R (Agriculture-Residential); this parcel is labelled as 
Tract II in the attached survey. 

         
PROPOSED USE:  Single-Family Residential and A-R Wedding/Event Facility 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-Family Residential and Agricultural 
 
LOCATION:  Hwy 314 N 
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  13th District, Land Lot 219  
 
ACREAGE: 50.15 acres, total  
 
OWNER(S):  1246 Hwy 314 Fayette Co LLC 
 
APPLICANT(S): 1246 Hwy 314 Fayette Co LLC 
 
AGENT(S):  Xavier Hill 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING: December 4, 2025, 7:00 PM, Tabled from the Planning 
Commission Hearing on November 6, 2025, 7:00 PM. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  January 22, 2026, 5:00 PM 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
APPLICANT'S INTENT 
 
The applicant proposes to rezone two parcels, with a total of 50.15 acres, from R-40 (Single-Family 
Residential) to A-R (Agricultural-Residential) for the purposes of use as a single-family residence and 
for operating an A-R Wedding/Event Venue.  
 

Petition 1372-25-A is a request to rezone Parcel No. 1306-011, 45.412 acres, from R-40 to A-R. 
 

Petition 1372-25-B is a request to rezone Parcel No. 1306-117, 4.738 acres from R-40 to A-R. 
  



 pg. 2 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

As defined in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Plan, Low Density Residential 
is designated for this area, so the request for A-R zoning, which is a lower density district, is 
appropriate. Parcel 1306-117 does not meet the minimum lot size for the A-R zoning. Therefore, a 
condition is recommended to ensure it is combined with the larger parcel, which will resolve this issue. 
Based on the Investigation and Staff Analysis, Planning & Zoning Staff recommends CONDITIONAL 
APPROVAL of the request for a zoning of A-R, Agricultural-Residential, subject to the following: 
 
1372-25-A: 

1. All parcels that are the subject of this petition shall be combined by a recorded final plat within 
180 days of the approval of the petition or prior to the submittal of a site development plan, 
whichever comes first.  

 
1372-25-B: 

1. All parcels that are the subject of this petition shall be combined by a recorded final plat within 
180 days of the approval of the petition or prior to the submittal of a site development plan, 
whichever comes first.  

 
 

 

1372-25-A 

1372-25-B 



 pg. 3 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

INVESTIGATION 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

Petition No. 1372-25-A - Parcel 1306  011 is a legal lot. The parcel and the existing house meet 
or exceed the requirements of the A-R zoning district.  
 
Petition No. 1372-25-B - Parcel 1306  117 is a legal lot in the R-40 zoning district. It does not 
contain the required minimum acreage for the A-R zoning district (5.0 acres). Therefore, staff 
has added the condition that it be combined with Parcel 1306 011, which will make the project 
fully compliant with A-R zoning criteria. Staff has reviewed this condition with the applicant, 
and they agree to it. 
 
The property has 1 single-family home and is otherwise used for agricultural purposes. 
 
GDOT will review and approve access engineering & construction plans within their 
jurisdiction if the site is developed further. GDOT is in charge of all driveways on the State 
Route. 

 
B. ZONING & DEVELOPMENT HISTORY:  
 

The R-40 zoning was part of a blanket zoning approved in 1971. 
 
This property is located in the General State Route Overlay Zone.  All developments are 
required to meet the Overlay criteria.  One requirement under this Overlay is that all access 
points for a development shall be on the State Route. The Overlay Zone also provides 
architectural, parking, enhanced landscaping requirements and increased building setbacks. 
  

C. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES 
 
The subject property is bounded by the following adjacent zoning districts and uses: 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use 
Comprehensive Plan/Future 
Land Use Map 

North 
85; 
60 

G-B; 
R-40 

Undeveloped; 
Single-Family Residential 

General Business; 
Low Density residential 

East (across 
Hwy 314) 

100+ R-40 Single-Family Residential Low Density Residential 

West 
 

100+ R-40 Single-Family Residential Low Density Residential 

South 100+ R-40 Single-Family Residential Low Density Residential 
 
  



 pg. 4 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

D. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

Future Land Use Plan: The subject property lies within an area designated for Low Density 
Residential uses on the Future Land Use Plan map. This request DOES conform to the Fayette 
County Future Land Use Plan, in that the proposed zoning is a less intense use. 

 
E. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 

 
 Water System – FCWS has no objections to the rezoning. 
 Public Works  

o Road Frontage Right of Way Dedication – State Route 314 right of way 
governed by GDOT. 

o Traffic Data -- In 2023 GDOT reports State Route 314 had 10,400 vehicles 
per day north the intersection of Hwy 279. 

o Sight Distance and access -- GDOT will issue all driveway permits. 
 Environmental Management 

o Floodplain Management -- The property DOES NOT contain floodplain per 
FEMA FIRM panel 13113C0019E dated September 26, 2008.  The property DOES 
contain additional floodplain delineated in the Fayette County 2013 Limited 
Dewberry Flood Study. 

o Wetlands -- The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. 
Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland 
Inventory Map.  

o Watershed Protection -- There ARE state waters located on the subject 
property, and it WILL BE subject to the Fayette County Article VII Watershed 
Protection Ordinance. The owner should reference the various sections of the 
document prior to any development within buffered areas. 

o Groundwater -- The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
o Post Construction Stormwater Management -- This development WILL BE 

subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance if re-zoned 
and developed with more than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface, or as 
applicable if developed as an A-R Wedding/Event venue. 

o Dams and Impoundment -- Dickson Lake Dam located on the property 
requesting to be rezoned has been assessed by Georgia Department of Natural 
Resources EPD Safe Dams Program to be a Class 1, high hazard dam.  Property 
owner(s) are required to meet all safe dam requirements by EPD Safe Dams 
Program.  

o Landscape and Tree Replacement Plan -- This development WILL BE 
subject to the landscaping requirements of the conditional use permit if developed 
as an A-R Wedding/Event Venue.  

 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed 
rezoning. This does not constitute approval of any future use or proposals for these 
properties.  

 Fire – The Fire Marshals Office approves of this rezoning under the condition that the 
proposed Bed and Breakfast meets the requirements of Fayette Count Ordinances 
Chapter 12, Article VI stating that such occupancies shall be protected by an automatic 
fire sprinkler system that provides coverage as per NFPA 13R throughout the entire 
structure.  

 
STANDARDS 



 pg. 5 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
Sec. 110-300. - Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation.  
All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the 
relationship of the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county. The 
following factors shall be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning 
commission and the board of commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning: 
(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained 

therein; 
(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 

nearby property; 
(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or 

burdensome use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools; 
(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of 

the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning 
proposal. 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Residential Uses. This request does 

conform to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan in terms of the Land Use Plan as A-R is a 
less intense use than the Low Density residential defined on the Future Land Use Plan. 

2. The area around the subject property is an area that already has various residential uses. It 
is staff’s opinion that the zoning proposal is not likely to have an adverse impact on nearby 
residential uses. 

3. It is staff’s opinion that an agricultural-residential use would not generate a greater number 
of daily vehicle trips than would a single-family residential use situated on this same parcel.  
Staff does not think this development will have an adverse impact on utilities or schools. 

4. The proposal is consistent in character and use with the immediate surrounding uses, as 
these are medium to large lot residential uses, with a trend toward rural character.  

  



 pg. 6 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-125. A-R, Agricultural-Residential District. 
 
(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures having a very low 
density single-family residential and agricultural character and designed to protect against the 
depreciating effects of small lot, residential development and those uses which are incompatible 
with such a residential and agricultural environment.  
(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the A-R zoning district:  

(1) Single-family dwelling;  
(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter);  
(3) Growing of crops and the on-premises sale of produce and agricultural products, 
provided 50 percent of the produce/products sold shall be grown on-premises;  
(4) Plant nurseries and greenhouses (no sales of related garden supplies);  
(5) Raising of livestock; aquaculture, including pay fishing; apiary (all beehives shall comply 
with the required setbacks); and the sale thereof; and  
(6) One semi-trailer/box truck utilized as a farm outbuilding, provided the property is a 
minimum of five acres and the semi-trailer/box truck is only used to store agricultural items.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the A-R zoning district 
provided that all conditions specified in article VII of this chapter. Conditional uses, 
nonconformances, transportation corridor overlay zone, and commercial development standards 
are met:  

(1) Aircraft landing area;  
(2) Animal hospital, kennel or veterinary clinic;  
(3) A-R bed and breakfast inn;  
(4) A-R wedding/event facility;  
(5) Cemetery;  
(6) Church and/or other place of worship;  
(7) Colleges and university, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium;  
(8) Commercial driving range and related accessories;  
(9) Child care facility;  
(10) Deer processing facility.  
(11) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas;  
(12) Farm outbuildings, including horse stables, auxiliary structures, and greenhouses 
(permanent or temporary);  
(13) Golf course (minimum 18-hole regulation) and related accessories;  
(14) Home occupation;  
(15) Horse show, rodeo, carnival, and/or community fair;  
(16) Hospital;  
(17) Kennel (see animal hospital, kennel, and/or veterinary clinic);  
(18) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, 
housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium;  



 pg. 7 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

(19) Processing, packaging, or handling of perishable agricultural products (i.e. fruits and 
vegetables) which are grown on premises;  
(20) Recreation centers and similar institutions owned by nonprofit organizations as so 
registered with the state secretary of state office;  
(21) Religious tent meeting; and  
(22) Shooting range, outdoor.  

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the A-R zoning district shall 
be as follows:  

(1) Lot area: 217,800 square feet (five acres).  
(2) Lot width: 250 feet.  
(3) Floor area: 1,200 square feet.  
(4) Front yard setback:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  
1. Arterial: 100 feet.  
2. Collector: 100 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 75 feet.  
(5) Rear yard setback: 75 feet.  
(6) Side yard setback: 50 feet.  
(7) Building height.  

a. 35 feet as defined in article III of this chapter.  
b. The limitation on height shall not apply to agricultural structures such as storage 
barns, silos, or other types of structure not normally designed for human occupation 
except that when an agricultural structure exceeds the maximum building height the 
minimum distance from property lines to any building shall be increased one foot for 
every two feet or part thereof of building height over 35 feet.  

(e) Special regulations. Prior to the issuance of development and/or building permits, a site plan, as 
applicable, shall be submitted to the zoning administrator and approved by the appropriate county 
officials. This requirement shall apply to all permitted uses and conditional uses allowed in the AR 
zoning district except single-family dwellings; residential accessory structures; growing crops and the 
on-premises sale of produce at agricultural stands of 100 square feet or less of floor area; growing 
and seasonal sale of Christmas trees; plant nursery, landscape tree farm, or greenhouse operations 
existing prior to the effective date of June 26, 2003; and the raising and/or selling of livestock.  
 
(Code 1992, § 20-6-1; Ord. of 7-28-2011; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 4, 5-24-2012; Ord. No. 2012-13, § 4, 12-
13-2012; Ord. No. 2012-14, § 3, 12-13-2012; Ord. No. 2014-19, § 6,7, 12-11-2014; Ord. No. 2015-05, § 
2, 3-26-2015; Ord. No. 2016-12, § 3, 7-28-2016; Ord. No. 2017-04, § 2, 3-23-2017; Ord. No. 2018-03, §§ 
11, 12, 9-22-2018) 
 
Sec. 110-169. - Conditional use approval. 
(2) Conditional uses allowed. 

g. A-R wedding/event facility. The facility shall be utilized for private and public weddings and 
events by a third party who provides some form of consideration to the owner or his/her 
agent. The facility shall not be utilized for concerts, sporting events, or vehicle racing. A horse 
show, rodeo, carnival, community fair, and/or religious tent meeting shall also be allowed as 



 pg. 8 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

regulated in this article and this section and the most restrictive conditions shall apply. A 
business office and/or structures utilized for event preparation and sanitation shall be 
allowed in conjunction with the A-R wedding and event facility. Allowed in the A-R zoning 
district. 

1. Minimum lot size: fifteen acres. 
2. These facilities shall not be permitted on a lot which accesses a road designated as 
an internal local road by the county thoroughfare plan and/or the county engineer. 
3. Facilities which access an unpaved county-maintained road are limited to 12 
weddings/events per calendar year. A wedding/event permit from the planning and 
zoning department is required prior to holding the wedding/event. 
4. A minimum 100 foot setback shall separate all buildings and areas utilized for 
weddings and events from any abutting residential zoning district. Otherwise all 
buildings and areas utilized for weddings and events shall meet the minimum A-R 
setbacks. 
5. Adequate off-street parking shall be required and a 50-foot setback shall separate 
parking areas from any abutting residential zoning district. A prepared surface is not 
required for the parking areas. However, any parking area with a prepared surface 
shall comply with article VIII. Off-street parking and service requirements of the 
development regulations and must be depicted on a sketch, drawn to scale on a 
survey of the lot. Grassed and gravel parking areas shall be exempt from 
nonresidential development landscape requirements of the county development 
regulations. The following is required for gravel parking areas: 

(i) Exterior and interior parking aisles shall be terminated at both ends by a 
landscape island. 
(ii) Landscape islands shall be provided for each 150 feet of continuous 
parking length. 
(iii) One canopy tree, six feet high at planting, is required per landscape 
island. 
Paved parking areas shall meet Article V, pertaining to "Non-residential 
development landscape requirements," of the county development 
regulations. 

6. Hours of operation for weddings and events shall be between the hours of 9:00 
a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on weekdays and 9:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. on weekends. These 
hours of operation shall not limit the setup and cleanup time before and after the 
wedding or event. 
7. All structures utilized in association with weddings and events shall meet all 
applicable building and fire codes. 
8. Sanitation facilities shall be approved by the environmental health department. 
9. Food service shall meet all state and local requirements. 
10. Tourist accommodations shall not be allowed in conjunction with an A-R wedding 
and event facility with exception of an A-R Bed and Breakfast Inn that is compliant 
with section 110-169 and Article VI, pertaining to "Tourist Accommodations," 
of Chapter 8 of the County Code. 
11. Tents shall require county fire marshal approval, as applicable. 



 pg. 9 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

12. A site plan meeting the full requirements of the county development regulations 
is not required. A sketch, drawn to scale on a survey of the lot depicting all existing 
buildings and specific areas utilized for weddings and events shall be required. The 
survey shall also depict FEMA and MNGWPD floodplain and elevations, and 
watershed protection buffers and setbacks as applicable. In the event that 5,000 or 
more square feet of impervious surface is added in conjunction with a wedding and 
event facility, a site plan compliant with stormwater requirements of the county 
development regulations shall be required. The site will be exempt from the 
nonresidential development landscape requirements and tree retention, protection, 
and replacement of the county development regulations. A site located on a state 
route shall comply with the applicable transportation corridor overlay zone (Sec. 110-
173) with the exception of the architectural standards. 

 
  



 pg. 10 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 11 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 12 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
 
 



 pg. 13 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 14 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 15 Rezoning Petition No. 1372-25-A-B 

 
 
 

 
SURVEY 

 
NOTE: Tract III is NOT part of this petition. 

 
 
 



1372-25-A-B



1372-25-A

1372-25-B





1372-25-A-B





















 pg. 1 1373-25 

PETITION No. 1373-25 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Rezone 7.745 acres from A-R to R-78 
   
PARCEL NUMBER:  0504 049 
 
EXISTING ZONING: A-R 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-78 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-Family Residential  
 
PROPOSED USE: Single-Family Residential 
 
LOCATION:  211 Harp Road 
 
LOT SIZE:  7.745 Acres 
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  5th District, Land Lot(s) 26 
 
OWNER(S):  Kyle D. Weishaar and Laura S. Weishaar 
 
APPLICANT(S): Kyle D. Weishaar and Laura S. Weishaar 
 
AGENT(S):  Mark Wiggins 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING: December 4, 2025, Tabled from the Planning Commission 
Hearing on November 6, 2025.  
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  January 22, 2026, at 5:00 PM 
 
 
REQUEST 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from A-R to R-78. 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT & RECOMMENDATION 
 
The lot is a legal nonconforming lot and meets or exceeds all the requirements of the R-78 zoning district.   
The Future Land Use Map designates this area as Rural Residential-2, which has a 2-acre minimum parcel 
size. The request to rezone to R-78 is consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan. At 4161 SF, the existing house on the parcel DOES meet/exceed the dimensional requirements for R-
78 for minimum floor area and it meets all building setback requirements.  
 
Staff recommends CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the request to rezone from A-R to R-78, subject to the 
following condition: 
 

1. The owner/developer shall dedicate land to Fayette County as needed to provide a minimum 50-ft 
of right of way as measured from the existing centerline of Harp Road for the full width of the parcel.  



 pg. 2 1373-25 

Submittal of all warranty deed(s) and legal descriptions for said right-of-way dedication(s) shall be 
provided to the County within 90 days of the approval of the rezoning request, or prior to the 
submittal of permit applications, whichever comes first. 
 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 
The subject property is currently zoned A-R, Agricultural-Residential. The property is currently developed 
with a single-family residence. As determined by staff previously, the lot is a legal nonconforming lot and 
meets or exceeds all the requirements of the R-78 zoning district.  The lot does not meet the minimum lot 
width for A-R, but it will meet the requirements of the R-78 zoning district so this rezoning will resolve the 
nonconformity. 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area as Rural Residential-2, which has a 2-acre minimum parcel 
size. The request to rezone to R-78 is consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
The existing house on the parcel DOES meet the dimensional requirements for R-78 for building setbacks 
and minimum floor area.  
 
B. ADJACENT ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 
The parcels surrounding the subject property are zoned R-70, having been part of the aforementioned 
blanket rezoning in 1973.  Many other parcels in the general area are zoned A-R. The Future Land Use Map 
for this property and all the surrounding properties is Rural Residential-2, 1 Unit/2 Acres. See the attached 
Zoning Map and Future Land Use Map.  
 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Future Land Use Plan 

North 25+ A-R 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit /2 
acres) 

East  25+ A-R 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit /2 
acres) 

South 
20 
100+ 

A-R 
R-40 

Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit /2 
acres) 

West  25+ A-R 
Single Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential-2 (1 unit /2 
acres) 

 
 

C. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

 Water System – No objections. 
 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections. 

o Road Frontage Right of Way Dedication -- Harp Road is a Minor Arterial, 50 from 
CL right of way is required per the Fayette County Thorough Fare Plan.  

o Traffic Data -- There is no existing traffic data for Harp Road. 
o Sight Distance and access -- The speed limit on Harp Road is 40 MPH, requiring 



 pg. 3 1373-25 

445 ft. of sight distance. If a new driveway permit is required, it must be permitted 
through EMD. 

o Floodplain Management – The property DOES NOT contain additional floodplain 
delineated in the FC 2013 Future Conditions Flood Study.  The property DOES NOT 
contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM panel 13113C0114E dated September 26, 2008.   

o Wetlands -- The property DOES NOT contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of 
the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.  The 
owner or developer will be responsible for submitting proper documentation 
during the development process as to the existence or non-existence of wetlands. 

o Watershed Protection -- There ARE NOT state waters located on the subject 
property, and it WILL BE subject to the Fayette County Article VII Watershed 
Protection Ordinance.  

o Groundwater -- The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
o Post Construction Stormwater Management -- This development WILL BE 

subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance if re-zoned 
and developed with more than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface. 

 Fire – No comments. 
 Environmental Health - This office has no objection to the proposed rezoning.  
 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route. 

 
STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 110-300. - Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation.  
All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the relationship of 
the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county The following factors shall 
be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning commission and the board of 
commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning: 
(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained therein; 
(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby 

property; 
(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome 

use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools; 
(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the 

property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Rural Residential-2 Uses. This request does 

conform to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 
2. The area around the subject property is an area that already has various residential and agricultural 

uses. Staff does not anticipate that this rezoning will have an adverse impact on the adjacent parcels. 
3. It is staff’s opinion that the zoning proposal will not have an excessive or burdensome impact on 

streets, utilities, or schools. 
4. The proposal is consistent in character and use with the surrounding uses as rural residential. 

  



 pg. 4 1373-25 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

Sec. 110-130. - R-78, Single-Family Residential District. 
(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures, having a low 
density single-family character and is designed to protect against the depreciating effects of small 
lot development and those uses incompatible with such a residential environment. 
(b) Permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the R-78 zoning district: 

(1) Single-family dwelling; 
(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter); and 
(3) Growing crops, gardens. 

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the R-78 zoning district 
provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 

(1) Church and/or other place of worship; 
(2) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas; 
(3) Home occupation; 
(4) Horse quarters; and 
(5) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, 
housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium. 

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-78 zoning district 
shall be as follows: 

(1) Lot area per dwelling unit: 87,120 square feet (two acres). 
(2) Lot width: 125 feet. 
(3) Floor area: 3,000 square feet. 
(4) Front yard setback: 

a. Major thoroughfare: 
1. Arterial: 100 feet. 
2. Collector: 75 feet. 

b. Minor thoroughfare: 50 feet. 
(5) Rear yard setback: 50 feet. 
(6) Side yard setback: 25 feet. 
(7) Height limit: 35 feet. 

  



 pg. 5 1373-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 6 1373-25 

 



 pg. 7 1373-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 8 1373-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 9 1373-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 10 1373-25 

 
SURVEY  

 



 pg. 11 1373-25 

 
APPROVAL OF REVISED PLAT OF EXISTING PARCELS 

































 

2026 Planning Commission Meeting Dates – Rev. 11/2025    Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 Fayette County, Georgia 

(Dates are subject to change with notice.  If a hearing falls on a holiday, a different hearing date will be 
scheduled.) 

 
The public hearings are held at the Fayette County Administrative Complex at 140 Stonewall Ave. W., 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 (located at the southwest corner of SR 54 and SR 85 in downtown Fayetteville), on the 
first floor in the Public Meeting Room (near the fountain) and hearings begin at 7:00 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
January 15, 2026*     

February 5, 2026     

March 5, 2026     

April 2, 2026      

May 7, 2026      

June 4, 2026      

July 16, 2026*                  

August 6, 2026 

September 3, 2026 

October 1, 2026 

November 5, 2026 

December 3, 2026 

January 7, 2027  

February 4, 2027     

  

 

 *Meetings may be canceled if there are no agenda items. Special called meetings may be added if necessary. 

These will be advertised and posted, as required.  

 

 

 

 

   




	(4) Survey-WB-210111-Minor FP_Rev1-R8.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S1





